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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it
is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may
be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Assurance Finance Group Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best
of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.

This report will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements” page of the GEM website at www.hkgem.com for a
minimum period of 7 days from the date of its publication and on the Company’s website at www.cafgroup.hk.
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Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
~T-mNF —T-=Ff T T——F _T-TF _TTHNHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT ARETT AR®TRT AR%®TT AR%TR
RESULTS #15
Revenue Wz 18,836 16,316 23,987 45,108 32,923 3,300
Other income HiA 2,051 3,296 2,481 764 614 2,877
Administrative and operating 17X & 418X
expenses (25269)  (23650) (15586 (10,600 (8,248) (3,064)
Listing expenses FHA% - — (3,6393) (8,274) = =
Equity-settled share-based  PARKH AEER K
payment expenses (ABALZE) B (17,001) 2,515) (11,571) = = =
Finance cost BTG (6,042) (1,863) = = = =
(Loss)/profit before income  Fi{SHEAT (E518)
tax /R (27,425) (8,416) (4,322) 26,998 25,289 3,113
Income tax expense FiEHiAx (2,758) (2,696) (4,515) (9,456) (7,277) (978)
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE (BE)
/i (30,183) (11,112 (8,837) 17,542 18,012 2,135
(Loss)/profit for the year BIEAREE (BE)
attributable to: Ve E
Owners of the Company AREEBA (30,516) 11,172 (9,486) 16,174 17,112 1,975
Non-controling interests FEFE R R 333 60 649 1,368 900 160
(30,183)  (11,112) (8,337) 17,542 18,012 2,135
As at 31 December
R+=ZA=+-H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
“2-mNFE —T-=f T T4 _—T-TF _TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT ARETT AR®TT AR%®TT AR%Tr
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥EREE
Total assets BEE 358,260 291,134 228,405 189,437 168,260 161,913
Total liabilities waE (149,6902) (81,428  (31,102)  (136,884)  (137,224)  (151,585)
Net assets BEFE 208,568 209,706 197,303 52,553 31,036 10,328
Non-controling interests b I (7,416) (7,083) (7,023) (6,374) (6,000) (5,100)
Equity attributable to ARREAA
owners of the Company FEfGHER 201,152 202,623 190,280 46,179 25,030 5,222
China Assurance Finance Group Limited TEERARESHMEBERAR
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On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present to all our shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and the public
the annual report of China Assurance Finance Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

Global central banks’ polices split despite the global economy
was on the recovery track in 2014. The United States exited from
the Quantitative Easing policy and threatened that interest would
be raised. Also, the economy of Eurozone remained uncertain,
recession continued in Japan, which caused equities, currencies
and commodities markets to be volatile. Being the second largest
economy in the world, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
experienced a slower growth in 2014, gross domestic product (GDP)
rose 7.4%, slightly lower than the benchmark 7.5% set by the PRC
government, which was the lowest growth in 24 years. The Chinese
economy will shift gear from the previous high speed to a medium-
to-high speed growth under the PRC “new normal”. The PRC
government unveiled “Mini-stimulus” and “Steady-growth” policy mix
to achieve a steady economic development.

Small and medium-sized enterprises (“SMEs”) will be the new drivers
of the PRC under the structural changes in economy. Although
the credit policy was relaxed in 2014, financing costs in the PRC
remained high, SMEs faced difficulties in obtaining bank financing. In
November, the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) cut interest rates
for the first time in 2 years to relieve the plight. In addition, the PRC
government cut taxes and encouraged banks to develop internet
banking businesses serving also micro enterprises in order to support
and improve the SMEs business environment. The Group believes
that financing guarantee services of SMEs and micro enterprises
will become more popular under the policies, which benefits the
Group. The development of the core financial guarantee business of
the Group remained stable, revenue of financial guarantee business
increased 15.44% under the government policies.

China Assurance Finance Group Limited
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Chairman’s Statement
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Internet banking businesses in the PRC flourished in the fast growing
internet era. Mobile payment and peer-to-peer lending (“P2P”)
become one of the most popular payment and settlement methods
among the micro enterprises. Different state governments deployed
different measures to support the internet banking industry after
the Chinese State Council illustrated its encouragement in internet
banking development last year, showing that internet banking
business will be a great opportunity in the PRC.

In order to seize the opportunities of internet finance development
in the PRC, the Group entered into capital injection agreement with
Beijing Jin Dian Pai Information Technology Limited (“JDP”) to expand
sources of income and strengthen profitability. JDP specializes in
computer application software systems sales and development.
Following the completion of the capital injection, the Group expects
that JDP will contribute stable and substantial amount of profits to the
Group. On the other hand, Guangzhou Helipay Payment Technology
Limited (“Helipay”), the strategic partner of the Group, was named as
one of the approved non-financial institutions to conduct nationwide
third party payment and settlement services in the PRC, which
allowed Helipay to provide nationwide internet, mobile and banking
card payment and settlement services in the PRC. The Group
expects that the platforms of JDP and Helipay will bring synergy
effects to the Group’s stable core financial guarantee business.

The Group expects the global economic outlook remains uncertain
in the coming year, yet credit environment and capital of banking
system of the PRC will become loose relatively. In addition, the PRC
government prompts development of SMEs, micro enterprises and
internet banking, the Group remains confident with the prospect
of the industry. The Group will match and remains cautious on
the regulation tightening of online financial platforms to assure
the financial system remains healthy and stable. For a long-term
sustainability of the Group, we continue to identify opportunities for
expansion, enhance its competitiveness and strengthen the risks
control in order to maximize the returns to Shareholders.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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Finally, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to the Group’s
Directors, management team and staff members for their dedication
and hard work, our customers for their confidence and support for
our business, and our business partners, investors, Shareholders and
professional parties for their trust and support.

Chang Xi Min
Chairman

25 March 2015

China Assurance Finance Group Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

The Group is primarily engaged in the business of providing financial
guarantee services, performance guarantee services and advisory
services in the PRC.

In respect of the financial guarantee services, in principle, the Group
facilitates SMEs by acting as the guarantor for them to secure credit
facilities from lending banks.

The Group also provides its customers with performance guarantees,
guaranteeing that the customers will perform their contractual
obligations to the counter-parties in relation to, inter alia, delivery
of goods, services contracts and other obligations. Save for the
aforesaid, the Group is also permitted to provide various kinds of
performance guarantees, including without limitation, provision of
contract tendering, bidding guarantee, trade-related guarantees and
litigation bond, which are yet to be provided by the Group.

In addition to the provision of guarantee services, the Group also
provides its customers with advisory services. The advisory services
aim to strengthen (i) the customers’ communication with the lending
banks, financial institutions or their counter-parties; and (ii) the
understanding on the recent developments of financing regulations,
and policies and market practices. With the Group’s knowledge of
banks’ credit assessment practice of the customers, the Group is
able to assist its customers in improving their financial, accounting
and management systems and presentation.

The Company’s shares were (the “Shares”) were listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange since 6 January 2012.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2014, global economic growth slowed down, international
environment remained complex and volatile, the Chinese economy
shifted gear from high speed to a medium-to-high speed growth
under the “superimposition of the three periods”. The central
government paid more attention to the sustainability of environment
and economic growth in order to grasp and adopt the “new normal”.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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In recent years, the central government has put forward a number of
measures to reduce the high cost of enterprise financing in the PRC,
such as to raise the elasticity of loan-deposit ratio index, accelerate
the development of private banks, and loosen the listing requirement
of innovative enterprises. In view of the monetary and fiscal policies,
the PBOC continues to cut in banks’ reserve requirement ratios to
ease liquidity tightness and introduce the interest rate cuts to guide
the market to reduce the cost of financing so as to tackle the financial
difficulties of small and micro business as well as industries relates to
agriculture areas and farmers.

The Group will seize every opportunity in the industry to further
expand its scope of business for steady development. The following
shows the Group’s major business achievements in 2014

Financial guarantee remains the Group’s principal business, along
with the advancement to the direction of third-party payment and
commercial financing business, and the combination of online
business transactions with offline transactions. During the year, the
Group has achieved a series of business development. First, on 11
March 2014, Guangzhou Junyan Management Company Limited
(“Guangzhou Junyan”), an indirect subsidiary of the Group, and the
Guangzhou Branch of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co.,
Ltd. (“Shanghai Pudong”) agreed to implement relevant works and
system design for innovative financing in the Sihuishi jade trading
industry with P9 & T 2k B & 28 & 5 & 12 {2 # 9 /0 (Sihuishi Jewelry
and Jade Trade Management and Promotion Center*), /& 1 & 2
& (Sihuishi Jade Association®) and It R& FEFRERBHE T FH
L (Beijing Jinmajia Equity Exchange Center®); and to participate in
the establishment of a jade assessment and valuation committee
in Sihuishi, to form an expert pool with the selection of recognised
industry experts, as well as to form an assessment group by random
selection in order to facilitate the promotion of the Sihuishi jade
trading industry and to support the Sihuishi government on the
establishment of guidance seed fund for the Sihuishi jade trading
industry. The Group and Shanghai Pudong aim to accelerate the
development of the jewelry and jade industry in Sihuishi, the target
scale of Sihuishi jade industry is to reach RMB200 billion by the year
of 2020.

China Assurance Finance Group Limited
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Secondly, on 25 April 2014, Guangzhou Junyan introduced Helipay
and Zhejiang Lianyijia Technology Limited (“Lianyijia”), as strategic
partners to provide third party payment services in the RPC and to
jointly offer customers with convenience on all round and diversified
finance, e-commerce and payment services. With the high-
technology e-commerce capalbilities, rapidly growth of large business
data platform and the fully network coverage of Lianyijia; Guangzhou
Junyan and Helipay have relevant license, plus the relevant
technologies and network of Helipay, mutually complementary
synergies with the tripartite. Thereafter, the Group commenced
business co-operation with the two companies on finance,
e-commerce and payment services on 11 July 2014. On 15 July
2014, Helipay has been named on the official website of the People’s
Bank of China as one of the approved non-financial institutions to
conduct nationwide third party payment and settlement services in
the PRC with the validity from 10 July 2014 to 9 July 2019, which will
provide nationwide internet, mobile and banking card payment and
settlement services to enhance the development of financial sector
and expand SMEs trading and settlement financial platform.

Thirdly, on 18 September 2014, the Group entered into the
subscription and capital injection agreement to inject capital in 60%
equity interest in the amount of RMB12 million. JDP has been found
over a decade, its major business is to develop real-time trading
technologies mainly focusing on property sales, land sales, corporate
and government sales and bidding system development and services
and other fields. At the same time, JDP has entered into 15-year
strategic cooperation agreement for jewelry and jade trading platform
with EMERR S FT (Guangzhou Commodity Exchange*) as its
exclusive electronic exchange platform of individual commodities.
This corporation creates synergy for the Group and broadens its
revenue stream, which is one of the crucial strategies to establish its
internet-finance platform in the PRC.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2014, revenue of the Group
was approximately RMB18.84 million (2013: RMB16.32 million),
representing an increase of approximately 15.44% as compared with
last year. Detailed analysis of revenue is as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

HER - RZZFE—NOFOA=+HA - EME
S ABMAFE NI ERREERA
A ([BER]) EABBAERYE  EFEH
REE=FZARE - UHRREFIRES
A Znlbm et - B kIR RE
BA - BEMEROSEEEFEBEINGE -
RERIEROANHESBETLa RE2EMEE
E ENE2REFEFEHE@RE - B
FAEFENRBREIM A  ZE =
PREBEFMIHEBE - 1t - AERRZ
T-NFLA+—HEEMRARERE -
BIEEAIMREFERREREE - R
—T-MNFELA+RHE AFERFERAR
IRITE TR ERY BEP —REMAEIES
BRE - NP BEREEEEE = A RE
R B=FE—WFLA+HRE=Z— A
FLANBEK - AIEZESHENREE B
M FRERIT RN REERS - MR
CRENEELBEP DN REER

F= RZT-OFAATNB  AEEFT
MRBIOTE W - UARK1,2008 7T
BO0% M - RS HMCKIL T ZFH
A HXZXEBARBERISRM - T2
STEFMEHRSE - LHHEE  EERBMT
M HE MRRIE AR E RREEF L ER
i o FE - ERESHACBEMNERR S
AKREEORHF AR LISFBEEA 1FH
& BERERNERNBRETRSTE -
%N AR AR BTSRRI - IR E UL
AR REAERERYEBEREFaH
HEEM L — -

f1 35 B R

K 28
RE-T-—ME+-A=T—BILFE &
581551 U0 35 49 A R 18,840,000 (=B

— =5 AR¥16,320,0007T) @ & EFIE
R#15.44% - BERAWEHNFASTOT

T EER

12



Management Discussion and Analysis

o B e g3 T

13

Financial Guarantee

Revenue from financial guarantee of the Group represented revenue
from the provision of financial guarantee services and the relevant
consultancy services.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, revenue from financial
guarantee of the Group was approximately RMB18.84 million
(2013: approximately RMB16.32 million), representing an increase
of approximately 15.44% as compared with 2013, and representing
100% of the Group’s total revenue in 2014 (2013: approximately
100%). Approximately RMB12.79 million derived from the provision
of financial guarantee services and approximately RMB6.05 million
derived from the provision of the relevant consultancy services.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, revenue from financial
guarantee amounted to approximately RMB16.32 million, of which
approximately RMB8.06 million derived from the provision of financial
guarantee services and approximately RMB8.26 million derived from
the provision of the relevant consultancy services.

The number of new contracts regarding financial guarantee entered
into for the year ended 31 December 2014 was 100 (2013: 79),
representing an increase of approximately 26.58% as compared with
last year. Given the increase in the number of new contracts and the
increase in the average contract price of financial guarantee services,
the revenue has been encouraging during the year.

Other Income

The Group’s other income contained bank interest and government
grants. The Group’s other income for each of the years ended
31 December 2013 and 2014 were approximately RMB3.30
million and RMB2.05 million respectively. The decrease of
approximately 37.88% was mainly attributable to decrease
in the amount of average bank deposits for the year ended
31 December 2014,

China Assurance Finance Group Limited
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Administrative and Operating Expenses

Administrative and operating expenses primarily consisted of (i) salary
and welfare expenses for management and administrative personnel;
(i) depreciation and amortisation; (iii) rental expenses; and (iv) other
administrative expenses including professional fees. For the year
ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s administrative and operating
expenses amounted to approximately RMB25.27 million (2013:
approximately RMB23.65 million). The increase of administrative and
operating expenses was primarily due to the increase in staff cost,
legal and professional fee, and other related expenses resulting from
our business growth.

Loss Before Income Tax and Loss Attributable to
Shareholders

Loss before income tax for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
approximately RMB27.43 million, increased from loss of approximately
RMB8.42 million in 2013. Loss attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2014 was approximately RMB30.52
million, increased from loss of approximately RMB11.17 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013, which was mainly due to (i) the
expenses related to the grant of share options to any full-time or part-
time employee of the Company or any member of the Group, or any
other eligible persons (the “Eligible Persons”) on 20 November
2013 and 10 July 2014 which is one-off and non-cash in nature, as
the relevant vesting condition has been fulfiled; and (i) increase in the
finance cost incurred from the short-term loan.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2014, pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents amounted to approximately RMB44.75 million (2013:
approximately RMB54.61 million) and approximately RMB42.89
million (2013: approximately RMB9.33 million) respectively,
representing a decrease in pledged bank deposits of approximately
RMB9.86 million and an increase in cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB33.56 million compared with 31 December
2013. The Group generated negative cash flows of approximately
RMB27.28 million from operating activities during the year which
was attributable to, amongst others, (i) increase in other receivables,
prepayments and deposits paid; and (i) increase in entrusted loan
receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any
borrowings which bore floating interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk primarily relates to the interest-bearing bank balances and
pledged bank deposits. The Group did not hedge its exposure
to interest rates during the year, but may enter into interest rate-
hedging instruments in the future to hedge any significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The gearing ratio, which was calculated by dividing total debts (i.e.
other borrowings) by total equity, was 12% as at 31 December 2013
and 24% as at 31 December 2014.

Contingent Liability

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Material Acquisitions or Disposals of Subsidiaries
and Affiliated Companies

On 17 January 2014, the Group disposed the 9th and 10th Floors
of Building No.1 of Aurora Liachai International Building (“Aurora
Liaohai”) which is located at Huli District, Xiamen City at an
aggregate consideration of RMB20,489,560.

On 3 April 2014, the Group disposed the Units A to D on the 3rd Floor
of Building No.1 of Aurora Liaohai, which is located at Huli District,
Xiamen City at an aggregate consideration of RMB15,077,700. The
net proceeds from the disposal will be approximately RMB14 million,
which will be applied in developing the third party payment business
and for general working capital purpose.

On 18 September 2014, (i) Assurance Finance Services Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Investor”); (i)
FHMW AL (Mr. Yu Hongbin®, “Mr. Yu”) and Z&F4 4 (Mr. Li Xuan®,
“Mr. Li”) (the “Original Shareholders”); and (iii) JDP entered into
the subscription and capital injection agreement, pursuant to which
the Investor will inject capital in the amount of RMB12,000,000 into
JDP. Upon completion of the capital injection, JDP will be held as to
60%, 37% and 3% equity interests by the Investor, Mr. Yu and Mr. Li,
respectively. The Investor, the Original Shareholders and JDP entered
into the supplemental agreement to extend the long stop date to

31 May 2015.
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Significant Investment and Future Plans for Material
Investments or Capital Assets

Save as disclosed above in this report, there were no significant
investments during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Change in Board Lot Size

Since 11 March 2014, the board lot size for trading was changed
from 10,000 Shares to 2,000 Shares. The Directors believed that
the change in board lot size would reduce the board lot value of
the Shares and thus could improve the liquidity of the Shares and
broaden the Company’s shareholder base.

Grant of Share Option

On 10 July 2014, the Company granted certain share options to
Eligible Persons which entitled them to subscribe for an aggregate
of 25,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued
share capital of the Company, at the exercise price of HK$1.50 per
share, subject to the acceptance by the Eligible Persons and terms
and conditions under the share option scheme adopted by the
Shareholders of the Company on 1 December 2011 (the “Share
Option Scheme”).

OUTLOOK

In 2014, global economic trends were different, the macroeconomic
outlook in 2015 is expected to remain challenging. As the United
States has threatened to raise interest rates, some countries are
expected to follow into the rate hike cycle. The economy of the
Eurozone remains hard to pick as Germany, the largest economy
of the zone, is unable to support the whole zone alone. Meanwhile,
emerging markets may encounter resistance under the turnaround of
overall economic environment after years of high speed growth. In the
PRC, the PBOC initiated monetary easing in November by rate cut
to assure the economic growth. The Chinese economy is foreseen to
shift gear from the previous high speed to a medium-to-high speed
growth entering “Thirteenth Five Year Plan”.
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The Chinese economy trends to a domestic-demand led era, the
development of SMEs and micro enterprises were strongly supported
by the China State Council in the year. In 2014, the China State
Council deployed “targeted reduction” to SMEs and micro enterprises
to help resolved the difficulties these enterprises are facing in
obtaining bank loans and high financial cost. The China State Council
targeted at effective financing cost reduction by offering vigorously
support for authorised financing guarantee and re-guarantee
institutions, improving bank-and-guarantee institution corporation
mechanism, expanding the scale of guarantee business in SMEs,
micro enterprises and “three rural” areas. The Group believes the
financing guarantee market has huge potential and remains optimistic
about the industry outlook with the support of the policy measures
and the change of economic structure.

The Group will diversify its business except the core financing
guarantee business in order to expand its income sources. The series
of cooperation between Helipay and the Group will focus on the
overall trade market in Guangdong Province, the PRC, and set up a
third party payment and settlement financial platform in the E/NZE
¥MIZEE (Guangzhou Professional wholesale Market Chamber of
Commerce*) with comprehensive and solid payment and settlement
services. The Group is also optimistic about the prospects for asset
securitisation. The Group intended to establish online third-party
trading platforms for stamps and coins, aloes wood, fur etc with JDP
and other institutions .

With the rapid development of internet, the PRC government
confirmed the importance of the development of internet finances.
According to the FEIP2PHEERBITEIE®RSE (China P2P
network loan service industry evaluation report*), it showed that
by the end of 2014, the number of P2P internet lending platforms
in China had reached 1,600 while the new online platform had
exceeded 900. The Group expected that further clarification of
monitoring-oriented policies and regulations will be the main focus of
the industry development. The Group believes that the development
of internet finance in China is still in early stage and still has great
potential of further development. The Group will act in concert with
the government’s regulatory measures and manage risk with caution
to ensure business stability.
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Looking forward, the policy is expected to remain loose. The central
government suggested various measures to support SMEs in order
to alleviate the financing pressures on SMEs caused by the high
cost of corporate finance. With the implementation of P2P net loan
industry regulation, the Group has a positive view of prospects for
the credit market in the PRC. In order to establish a comprehensive
internet finance platform and increase profit, the Group will explore
the development of internet finance and is committed to strengthen
strategic deployments in various areas in order to consolidate our
strengths. In the third-party payment services, the Group will explore
more new clients and plan to cooperate with other insinuations
to provide stable and reliable payment services. On the other
hand, the Group will explore new potential business to satisfy the
diverse needs of our customers. In the future, the Group will pay
more attention to the third-party payment services. The Group will
continue to strengthen its risk control and monitoring system, and
adopt a prudent approach on cost control in order to achieve stable
development and generate satisfactory returns to Shareholders.

Capital Commitments and Capital Expenditure

Capital commitments represent the Group’s commitment in relation
to (i) the acquisition of a property (the “Hebei Property”) situated
at Unit 1 on Basement Level 2, Fortune Centre, No.3 Shi Fu Main
Street West, Gao Xin District, Zhangjiakou, Hebiei, the PRC, which
is intended for warehouse storage use by JAIE KBEITIERAR A )
(Hebei Da Sheng Guaranty Company Limited*, “Hebei Da Sheng”),
a joint venture enterprise established in the PRC and an indirect
95% owned subsidiary of the Company; and (i) capital injection for
the acquisition of JDP. For further information in relation to the Hebei
Property, please refer to the prospectus of the Company dated 29
December 2011 (the “Prospectus”) and the annual report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The capital commitments of the Group as at 31 December 2014 not
provided for in the financial statements were approximately RMB1.76
million (2013: RMB1.76 million) for land and buildings, approximately
RMB7 million (2013: Nil) for capital injection for the acquisition
of a subsidiary and Nil (2013: RMB1.63) for property, plant and
equipment.
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The increment in capital expenditure of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2014 was approximately RMB5.12 million (2013:
approximately RMB38.59 million). Such increment was principally
attributable to the increase in expenditure in motor vehicles and
construction of Aurora Liaohai.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of 61 employees
(2013: 55 employees). The Group’s total staff costs (including
Director’s emoluments) were approximately RMB5.56 million (2013:
RMB4.99 million). The remuneration policy is determined with
reference to market condition, performance and qualification.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has granted
an aggregate of 25,000,000 share options (2013: 55,000,000 share
options) to the Eligible Persons under the Share Option Scheme.
Equity-settled share-based payments recognised for the year ended
31 December 2014 were approximately RMB17 million (2013:
RMB2.52 million). The Group participates in the PRC government-
sponsored social security system as required under the relevant PRC
laws and regulations. The social security system in the PRC includes
retirement, work injury, medical care, unemployment and other
insurance coverage for the employees. The Group also maintains the
Mandatory Provident Fund scheme and insurance for its employees
in Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no forfeited contributions
(by employers on behalf of employees who leave the scheme prior to
vesting fully in such contributions) may be used by itself to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

Charge on Group Assets

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group did not have
any charges on its assets.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s main operations are in the PRC. Most of the assets,
income, payments and cash balances are denominated in RMB.
The Company has not entered into any foreign exchange hedging
arrangement. The Directors consider that exchange rate fluctuation
has no significant impact on the Company’s performance.

Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Comparison of Business Objectives with Actual Business Progress
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An analysis of the comparison between the business objectives
stated in the Prospectus and the Group’s actual business progress
for the period from the latest practciable date of the Prospectus (i.e.
20 November 2011) to the date upon publication of this report is set

out below:

J]

EXPAND THE GROUP’S MARKET PRESENCE IN

HEBEI PROVINCE

Business objectives

¥BEE

Commence business operation of Cangzhou City
representative office

FRARMTRRMER 2 EEEK

Set up a representative office in Shijiazhuang City and / or
Qinghuangdao in Hebei Province.

RTIEEARET R, RREBRIRKRPER

Negotiate with banks to increase guarantee limit

HRERTTRER ASE IR RAEE

Conduct seminars to potential customers in Hebei Province

AL EE R PR RS

Negotiate with banks to increase guarantee limit

BERITRE R DB INER B
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Actual business progress upon publication of this report

TIBABER 2 BREREE

Due to the strict approval progress of mainland banks and
government department in recent years, the Group is still
applying for the registration certificate and pending the
approval from &M ™ LA 218 B (Industry and Information
Technology of Cangzhou City Bureau®).
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SENEFBREFRNT IENESCRBEBEEL 2 ERLE
=,

The Group will make further arrangement based on the actual
situation of the business in the future.

AEEMRRBREFZERBLBIEEBRTH -

Zhangjiakou City Commercial Bank has increased Hebei Da
Sheng’s guarantee limit by 8 times.
RER AT EFRITETILRRITZ BEREERS 81 °

Conducted seminars related to the financing of SMEs in the
province in the international market on 21 May 2013. Partner
banks and corporate clients were invited to the seminars.
During the seminars, the investigative group discussed clients’
financing needs, criteria and ways to amplify the amount.
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Zhangjiakou City Commercial Bank has increased Hebei Da
Sheng’s guarantee limit by 8 times.
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Business objectives

EBEE

Conduct seminars to potential customers in Hebei Province

A& BEE PR S

i) EXPAND THE GROUP’S MARKET PRESENCE IN

XIAMEN CITY AND OTHER CITIES

Business objectives

EBER

Establish cooperation relationships with the Industrial Bank
Co., Ltd., Longhai Zhangzhou Commercial Bank and Ping

An Bank
BEZEIRT  BREMEERITRFERBITELE EBRE

Set up a representative office in Fuzhou City and Quanzhou
City
@I T R RN TR SRR R

Negotiate with banks to increase guarantee limit
BRI TRE P DG INER B

Set up a representative office in Longhai city, Fujian
Province

RIBZEREMRIARNFR

Conduct seminars to potential customers in Xiamen City
and Longhai City
mEMTRESHEESPEIANE
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Actual business progress upon publication of this report
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Conducted seminars related to the financing of SMEs in the
province in the international market on 21 May 2013. Partner
banks and corporate clients were invited to the seminars.
During the seminars, the investigative group discussed clients’
financing needs, criteria and ways to amplify the amount.

ERERRNEERBETISRENR_Z—=Fa A _-+—H
EITHAE - ARG T A FRITRCEEFLE - B
BNATEHAERATEPRERL  RGERMREETES -

) BAXEEREMHRE
BEEH 2 TEERER

Actual business progress upon publication of this report

HBABRER 2 BREKERE

A letter of industry intent has each been signed with Industrial
Bank Co., Ltd. and Ping An Bank. Due to the strict approval
progress of mainland banks and government department in
recent years, the Company is still waiting for confirmation from
the main branches of the respective banks.

BEEZRITEFDTRTFRRT (EFID1T) Bl TEER
ME - ANTEAF - NHAYRIT RSP E IR EE &
2, AR RDESIRMFIRITRITEL ©

The Group will make further arrangement based on the actual
situation of the business in the future.

AEEMIRRB RIS ERBELBIEEBRTH -

Ongoing negotiations were held with China Merchants Bank.
MR RITAHK S -

The Group will make further arrangement based on the actual
situation of the business in the future.

REBFRRAREB 2 BEREBERBIEEB R -

Seminars were held for potential customers in Xiamen City and
Longhai City on 18 March 2013.
REZE—=F=ATN\AMEMTREETAZEEEFEH
e -

T EER
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lll) EXPAND THE SCOPE OF THE GROUP’S EXISTING [II) E%%;ZIK%ZIE’E ¥R

BUSINESS AND SERVICES

Business objectives

EBER

Commence guarantee services for supply chain financing
in Hebei Province and/or Xiamen City
ORI R RSB P R g6 R SR AR AR T

Commence project guarantee and procedural preservative
guarantee business

PSR TR B ER RS R R RER

Expand the Group’s services to Longhai City, Fujian
Province
BRASERGEERERES

Expand the Group’s services to Fuzhou City or Quanzhou

City
BERREEREERMTSRMT

China Assurance Finance Group Limited

Actual business progress upon publication of this report

HBABRER2BREKEE

The supply chain guarantee services of Hebei Da Sheng is still
under negotiation.

AR BRTT 2 ISP R ARTS B ATDAERERS T+ -

The Group will make further arrangement based on the actual
situation of the business in the future.

AEEMRRBREB I ERBENBIEEBRLH -

The Group will make further arrangement based on the actual
situation of the business in the future.
REEGERBRARES 2 ERBELBIEE B RLYHE

The Group will make further arrangement based on the actual
situation of the business in the future.

AEEMRRAREE I ERBENBIEEBRLH -
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Comparison of Business Objectives with Actual Business Progress

IV) RECRUIT ADDITIONAL EXPERTISE AND ALLOCATE
MORE RESOURCES TO IMPROVE CREDIT RISK

1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014
—E-NE—-A-HE-E-NF+=-A=+—H

Set up a training centre and in Xiamen City headquarter
REPIT AR IF IO

Set up internal examination system for the staff
RE IR IAERE Z5

Send major staff for overseas training
IKiEE BB TEPIEIMNEF

All key personnel must possess at least a guarantee
industry-related certification
FIBEX2ABNAREDHA —BERITERERE

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

S H AR

TR BE 2 Hhig

V) BEE
&R

Actual business progress on the date of announcement

EZNMACEREREE

Xiamen City headquarter passed the acceptance and is
under renovation. The set up of the training centre and risk
management centre is expected to postpone to the second
half of 2015 (Not May to June 2013 as stated in 2012 Annual
Report)
EFImAREL@mBRK - RIEE
FLORRBREERLBEEE T —
—FFRAMT —F

A s FBERRR B
AFTHF (MIFP=Z
—=FRAZENRA) R -

The Group will make further arrangement based on the actual
situation of the business in the future.

AEERIZRAREE 2 ERBERNBEEEBRLEHE -

Hebei Da Sheng sent the project manager of the institutional
financial guarantee department, risk manager and/or business
staff to Baoding City in Hebei Province, Shijiazhuang City and
Langfang City for training and learning between April 2013 and
June 2013.

RZE—=FWMAMHESAHERE T RETE

TR RVE MRS TE B AIE - MR R, SRS EE T E
EERED - ARED RBHHETEIREE -

Eight key personnel of Hebei Da Sheng have obtained Credit
Risk Management certification.

AERETEE/ETBEABRRGEERRERMNELEE

T EER
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam, aged 36, was appointed as an executive
Director, the chief executive officer and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company on 1 December 2011. Mr. Chang is one
of the founders of the Group. He is responsible for the operation and
management of the Group. Mr. Chang obtained a bachelor degree
in business management from the University of New Brunswick of
Canada in September 2000.

Mr. Chang is currently the executive director of Kong Sun Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 295). He was an independent non-executive
director of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited (stock code: 444)
from June 2012 to September 2012. Mr. Chang has over 7 years of
experience in property development before he set up the Group with
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon, an executive Director and the vice chairman
of the Company. He joined his family business in 2000, served as
a general manager of EFTEMEEHZE AT (Xiamen Xiaoxiang Real
Estate Limited*) and director of ;AL ¥R EHEMZEGR A
(Hebei New East Asia Real Estate Development Company Limited®)
and AL KR I TERB R A7) (Hebei Da Sheng Guaranty Company
Limited*), an indirect subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Chang is also the
vice chairman of SR A M LA & (Zhangjiakou City Chamber
of Commerce*), the chairman of 5KZX AR /MNEE (Quanzhou City
Chamber of Commerce of Zhangjiakou*), a committee member of
REXOMSFEAE (Zhangjiakou City Youth Federation*) and a
member of the board of supervisors of 5k R A T ERITRMD BR A
A] (Zhangjiakou City Commercial Bank Co., Limited*).

Mr. Chang is the son of Mr. Chang Xi Min, a non-executive director of
the Company and the chairman of the Company.

Mr. Pang Man Kin, Nixon, aged 46, was appointed as an executive
Director, the vice chairman, a member of the remuneration committee
and an authorised representative of the Company on 1 December
2011, and was subsequently appointed as a director and chief
executive officer of China Assets Group Investment Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company on 14 September
2012 and 20 November 2013 respectively. Mr. Pang is one of
the founders of the Group. He is responsible for overall strategy
formulation and planning of the Group. Mr. Pang was an executive
director of Aurora Global Investment Holdings Limited (now known
as “Energy International Investments Holdings Limited”) (stock code:
358) from August 2005 to July 2007 and had participated in various
mergers and acquisitions and company restructuring.

China Assurance Finance Group Limited
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Mr. Chen Xiao Li, aged 44, was appointed as an executive Director
and the compliance officer of the Company on 1 December 2011.
Mr. Chen is responsible for overseeing the compliance issue and
the internal control of the Group. He is also a member of the credit
management standing committee of the Group. Mr. Chen obtained a
bachelor degree in laws from Hebei University in December 1998 and
a master degree in laws from Tsinghua University in January 2005. He
is a practising lawyer in the PRC. Mr. Chen has been providing legal
services to the Group since 2006.

Mr. Chang Xi Min, aged 67, was appointed as a non-executive
Director and the chairman of the Company on 1 December 2011.
Mr. Chang was the editor of Xiamen Daily from 1983 to 1989,
during which he studied at The Open University of China (formerly
known as “China Central Radio and TV University”) and graduated
in September 1988. Mr. Chang was the economic consultant of
Zhangjiakou Municipal Government, the secretary general of Xiamen
General Chamber of Commerce, a member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Hebei Province Committee of
the PRC and a general member of Zhangjiakou Municipal Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He was
an executive director of Fairyoung Holdings Limited (now known
as “Madex International (Holdings) Limited”) (stock code: 231) from
1997 to 2003. Mr. Chang has also been the chairman of Liaohai
International Investment Limited since 2001. He is the father of Mr.
Chang Hoi Nam, an executive Director and the chief executive officer
of the Company.

Mr. Chan Kai Wing, aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, chairmen of the audit committee and the
remuneration committee, and a member of the nomination committee
of the Company on 1 December 2011. Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor
degree of economics from Macquarie University in Sydney, Australia
in April 1986. He is a fellow member of CPA Australia. Mr. Chan is
currently the managing director and founder of Mandarin Capital
Enterprise Limited, a company specialised in provision of financial
advisory, merger and acquisition and fund raising for both listed
and private companies in Hong Kong and the PRC. He is also an
independent non-executive director of China Conch Venture Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 586). He founded Mandarin Capital Enterprise
Limited in 2004 and started to provide financial advisory services to
a wide range of industries, such as real estate development industry

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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and dairy industry. Mr. Chan worked in the audit department of Ernst
& Young in Hong Kong from 1988 to 1991. He was also a director
and the financial controller of Shenzhen China Bicycle Company
(Holdings) Limited, a listed company in the PRC from 1991 to 1999.

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung, aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the nomination
committee and a member of each of the audit committee and the
remuneration committee of the Company on 1 December 2011. Mr.
Lam graduated from the Victoria University of Melbourne, Australia,
with a Bachelor of Business Degree majoring in banking and finance.
He also earned a Master Degree in Applied Finance from Macquarie
University of Australia. Mr. Lam is currently an executive director of
Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited (stock code: 8272) (He
re-designated from the independent non-executive director of that
company to the executive director from 17 April 2013). Mr. Lam is
an independent non-executive director of Zebra Strategic Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8260). He was an independent non-executive
director of The Hong Kong Building and Loan Agency Limited (stock
code: 145) from February 2012 to June 2014. He resigned as the
deputy chief executive officer of China Eco-Farming Limited (stock
code: 8166) on 17 April 2013.

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki, aged 47, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of the audit committee of the
Company on 1 December 2011. Mr. Chow holds a master degree in
professional accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chow is currently an independent
non-executive director of Dingyi Group Investment Limited (stock
code: 508). He was an independent non-executive director of China
Oriental Culture Group Limited (now known as “China Chuanglian
Education Group Limited”) (stock code: 2371) from January 2008
to May 2011 and the chief financial officer of Chinese Food and
Beverage Group Limited (stock code: 8272) from February 2008 to
December 2012.

China Assurance Finance Group Limited
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Bai Xiang, aged 69, joined the Group in November 2009. Mr.
Li is currently the chief risk control officer of the Group, responsible
for new guarantee product development and business expansion
strategy formulation. He is also the supply chain finance specialist
of China Assets Group Investment Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. He graduated from the radio
and automatic control system faculty of Huanan Polytechnic
majoring in water acoustics engineering in July 1969. Mr. Li is
currently a consultant of the FREYRAE HiR#EH L (China
Logistics Productivity Promotion Centre*). From 1990 to 2005, he
was the general manager of China National Materials Storage and
Transportation Guangzhou Corp, a subsidiary of a state-owned
enterprise which is engaged in securitisation management of pledged
assets for various financial institutions in the PRC since 1999. During
the period, Mr. Li conducted extensive researches on and has
gained extensive experience in (i) logistics management and project
guarantee businesses; and (i) securitisation of relevant assets along
the chain of logistics management for financial investments.

Furthermore, Mr. Li has been conducting researches on mixed
application of “supply chain” and “capital chain application”. He also
published various academic articles relating to “logistics bank and
risk management”. In 2007, as the expert of the logistic productivity
center in the PRC and the editor of the (¥ 1l7) (Logistics
Technology*), Mr. Li has participated in examination and approval of
the national standards which are issued by the National Development
and Reform Commission of the PRC, such as (it ¥R Fim=
JEFFE#R &) (Assessment on the Satisfactory Level of the Logistic
Enterprises®), ( B &) n MR EEE ZK) (Management Requirement
of the Automatic Sorting Facilities*) and {#1/7 F 2 T8 RIi@ A ) (General
Specification for Logistics Quantitative Forecast*) of the logistics
industry standard in the PRC.

Mr. He Jian Han, aged 37, joined the Group in April 2011. Mr.
He is currently the manager of the Group and responsible for the
risk control of the Group. He is also a member of the risk control
committee of the Company. Mr. He obtained a master degree in
business administration from Xiamen University in 2010. He worked
in Xiamen branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China.
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Mr. An Xiaochun, aged 49, joined the Group in September 2006.
Mr. An is currently the chief business supervisor of JAJ1b KBX1THE
RABM AT (Hebei Da Sheng Guaranty Company Limited*), an
indirect subsidiary of the Company, and is responsible for market
development, sales and preliminary approval of new projects. He
graduated from Hebei Radio and TV University with a diploma
in financial accounting in July 1988. Mr. An also graduated from
Central Party School of the Communist Party of China majoring in
management in party administration in December 1992. Furthermore,
he completed and passed an advanced-level course in risk
investment and corporate finance organised by the Continuing
Education Department of Tsinghua University in March 2011.

Mr. Chen Yi Ping, aged 52, joined the Group in November 2009.
Mr. Chen is currently the chief business supervisor of A&%1T(E1T)
ERBEMR AT (Da Sheng (Xiamen) Guaranty Company Limited*), an
indirect subsidiary of the Company, and is responsible for market
development, sales and preliminary approval of new projects. He
obtained a diploma in economic from Xiamen University in June
1984,

Mr. Xu Gao Sen, aged 37, joined the Group in November 2009. Mr.
Xu is currently the chief financial controller of the Group. He obtained
a graduation certificate in construction finance accounting from &
EEESZEHERER (Fujian Construction Vocational School*) in
July 1998. Before joining the Group, Mr. Xu worked as the accounts
manager of a property developer in Xiamen City for 5 years.

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 35, joined the Group in July 2008. Mr. Zhang
is currently the marketing manager of the Group and is responsible
for marketing affairs of the Group. He has more than three years
of experience in marketing area. Mr. Zhang obtained a diploma
in construction engineering and pricing management from Hebei
Institute of Architecture Civil Engineering in January 2008.

China Assurance Finance Group Limited
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Mr. Zhang Jun Hong, aged 49, joined the Group in November
2013. He is currently a director and joint chief executive officer
of China Assets Group Investment Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from the
Department of Economics, Renmin University of China in 1986
majoring in world economics. Mr. Zhang had previously worked for
the State Administration of Foreign Exchange of China. Mr. Zhang
had also previously served as the head of L& 3R (Economic
and Trade Development Department*) of &1 A A BRI FH2£4t (China
Talent Technology Development Agency®), the assistant to president
of The Chinese Mercantile Bank Shekou Branch, and the associate
director of Cathay International Limited. Mr. Zhang is the founder and
shareholder of Guangdong Heli Financial Technology Services Co.,
Ltd.

Mr. Chan Kim Leung, aged 50, joined the Group in November
20183. He is currently a director and head of business development
of China Assets Group Investment Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Chan obtained the bachelor degree
of business administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
in 1988. He further obtained the postgraduate diploma in English and
Hong Kong law from The Manchester Metropolitan University in 2002.
Mr. Chan had previously worked for The Wharf (Holdings) Limited
and Caltex Oil Hong Kong Limited. He had also previously served
as an administrative officer of the Hong Kong Government, and the
chief officer for directors’ office of UDL Management Limited. He has
extensive experience in the fields of investment, business operation
and networking.

Top Wisdom Enterprise Limited, a private company owned by
Mr. Chan, was appointed to provide consultancy services to the
Group on 1 May 2013.

Mr. Lin Zhao Qing, aged 52, joined the Group in November 2013.
He is currently the executive officer of China Assets Group Investment
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Lin
graduated from 1t R AL EREL T KXZ (Beijing Vocational University
of Cable Power Plant®) with telephone automatic switching profession
in 1985. Mr. Lin has extensive experience and professional knowledge
in the operation of power plant.
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Mr. Chen Gang, aged 39, joined the Group in November 2013.
He is currently the chief operating officer of China Assets Group
Investment Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Chen obtained the master degree in sociology from
the Peking University in 2001. He has extensive experience in the
field of operation management. Mr. Chen is currently an independent
non-executive director of China Rongsheng Heavy Industries Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1101).

Mr. Sun Xiao Ping, aged 48, joined the Group in November 2013.
He is currently the chief technology officer of China Assets Group
Investment Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Sun obtained the master degree in computer science
and technology from Xidian University in 2007. He has extensive
professional techniques and experience in electronic system and
software engineering.

Mr. Yu Hong Bin, aged 40, joined the Group in July 2014. Mr. Yu
is currently a joint executive officer of Assurance Finance Services
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr.
Yu is also the founder, controlling shareholder and chairman of
JDP, graduated from Peking University with major in information
management and holds master degree. Mr. Yu has over 15 years of
experience in design and development of software systems for bulk
commodity exchanges and electronic exchanges, and witnesses
the growth of the industry. The majority of senior management of
JDP’s development and operation team are also graduates of Peking
University with bachelor or master degree in computer software and/
or business administration, and has all-round techniques, business
acumen and experiences.

* For identification purpose only

China Assurance Finance Group Limited

BREIEE 395k RZTE—=F+—AMNA
REE - REEREATESHERIRERR
AR (ARRIZHEENBAR) 2 EFEEE
B FR-ZET—FEBSIRARBL LR
T c FHEELEENEETIRLR - Rk
FRAPEGRETIEBERAR AR (A&
MRS 1101) ZBIIFRNITES -

BPMREE 485 R-F—=F1+—A
MAREE - ZRERSTEEREERE
BRAB (RRARIZEEMBAR) 2EF
BifiE - FR_TELFREALE TR
REGFBRMBERMERZBLMRES
- WEABLENETERREHIREZE
ESSYIPNES

THWRE - 405 R-FT—EOFLAMA
AREE - TRAERSBREBRGERAA]
ZBERAITE  RARBZHEZZEHNBA
Al TRETRIERSHMEBA - AR
REFER IR AXBEREEREX  BL
B EAFREmMXBANETXBREMT
AT RAZEBBI6FER - BITX
K ERBEREEERSERZ AR
REBBEMBU R,/ KTEHERAR KBTS
% BEZEMRM REARABMER

*ERET

TERAREMEBERAE



Report of the Directors

o f e

The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2014. The Company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange on 6 January 2012 (the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is primarily engaged in the business of providing corporate
credit guarantee services, performance guarantee services and
the relevant consultancy services to small and medium enterprises
in Hebei Province and Xiamen Province of the PRC. Details of the
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the state
of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at that date are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 147.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2014. (2013: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital are set out
in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements in this report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to the Shareholders amounted to approximately
RMB164.2 million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements in this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements and the
Prospectus, is set out on page 5. This summary does not form part
of the audited financial statements in this report.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2014, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

China Assurance Finance Group Limited
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s major

FEERF

ME-Z-MET-A=T—ALFE A

customers are set out below: SECEERP
Percentage of total sales
HEHERER DL
Sales HEE
— the largest customer — BRAEP 3.55%
— the five largest customers combined — hAAREFP&H# 14.72%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2014 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Chen Xiao Li

Non-Executive Director:

Mr. Chang Xi Min (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Kai Wing
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki
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In accordance with articles 84 of the Articles, Mr. Chen Xiao Li,
Mr. Chang Xi Min and Mr. Chan Kai Wing will retire as Directors by
rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”).

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmations from
each of its independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence during the year and all independent non-executive
Directors are considered to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 25 to 31 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of three years from 6 January
2012 (renewable automatically for successive terms of one year
unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the service
agreement). Each of the non-executive Director and the independent
non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term with effect from 1 December 2014 until 30
November 2015. All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at annual general meetings of the Company pursuant
to the Articles.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
agreement with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed above and in note 32 to the financial statements,
no Directors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Remuneration committee was established for reviewing and
determining the remuneration and compensation packages of the
Directors with reference to their responsibilities, workload, and the
time devoted to the Group and the performance of the Group. The
Directors may also receive options to be granted under a Share
Option Scheme. The Company has conditionally adopted a Share
Option Scheme. The details of the Share Option Scheme are set out
in the paragraph headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” below.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE COMPANY IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company (the “Chief
Executives”) in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuer as
referred to in rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Required
Standard of Dealings”) were as follows:
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Shares in issue as at 31 December 2014.

China Assurance Finance Group Limited

(@) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.01 (a) ERE{E0.01 B T2 ZER
each and underlying shares KBRS Z2HFR
Number of Shares
B EE
Total number Approximate
Equity of Shares and percentage
Name of Personal Corporate derivatives underlying of the issued
Director interest interest  (share options) Shares share capital
EspR BARERE EEER BASTET R R KA EERITR
(BRRHE) ROEE FzBNEI
(Note 2) (Note 3)
(FiIEE2) (P4EE3)
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam — 924,716,000 — 924,716,000 57.51%
(“Mr. Chang”) (Note 1)
RelEEsE (PBiE1)
([REED
Mr. Pang Man Kln Nixon 117,500,000 924,716,000 — 1,042,216,000 64.81%
("Mr. Pang”) (Note 1)
TNBEL GER
(I#rE]D
Mr. Chen Xiao Li — — 15,400,000 15,400,000 0.96%
(“Mr. Chen”)
BR/INA 5 A
([BREE])
Notes: BFeE
These shares were registered in the name of Team King Limited 1. E?%H’ifﬁﬁ/{ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ A ([F#]) &
(“Team King”), which was legally and beneficially owned as to BERL ZARDIBHEETREER
92.506% by Capital Gain Investments Holdings Limited (“Capital BRAR A ﬁ ;J) EENEZHESR
Gain”) and 7.494% by Best Access Holdings Group Limited (“Best 92.506% M H Best Access Holdings Group
Access”). Capital Gain was legally and beneficially owned as to Limited ([ Best Access |) &AM EHHEAR
51% by Mr. Pang and 49% by Mr. Chang. Best Access was legally 7.494% - BEDRIBRZAERERE
and beneficially owned by Dr. Ma Chung Wo Cameron (“Dr. Ma”). =B 51% NARTCESERERHES
Under the SFO, each of Mr. Pang and Mr. Chang was deemed to be 49% ° Best Access B FRME 4 ([ 5
interested in the Shares held by Team King by virtue of Team King BE)) AERERER  REEFR
being controlled by Mr. Pang and Mr. Chang through Capital Gain. Dr. HMERD - ARAEHHZEERKREER
Ma was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Team King by MEEES M EERKREERRR
virtue of Team King being controlled by Dr. Ma through Best Access. IREFTRERGO P AR %WD
FA 55 B 4 818 Best AccessiZ ) -
EE%EZWEEE’\/ MEVAT R B AR 1 R T?Eﬁ*’é
The interests in the share options (being regarded as unlisted 2. BREzER REELTEERWR
physically settled equity derivatives) are detailed under the paragraph ALTEEM) RARSE [HERETE) —
headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” in this report. EREF o
The percentage was calculated on the basis of 1,608,000,000 3. ZBAAMEIIERZZF-—NF+=

AR=+—-—HzZBBTHRMHHE
1,608,000,000 A& B EAEFTH -
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(b) Long positions in the shares of associated (b) RAEEEZERHD 2FR

corporation
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of shares held interest in
Name of associated in associated associated
Director corporation Capacity corporation corporation
Fris i 2@ AL ERER
BEsps HECEE A 227) RHEE ZBRBED L
Mr. Chang Team King (Note) Through a controlled 46,253 92.506%
RESE ANED (PIRE) corporation
Rt EE R
Mr. Pang Team King (Note) Through a controlled 46,253 92.506%
gkt M (i EE) corporation

R HAE R

Note: Team King was legally and beneficially owned as to 92.506% by
Capital Gain and as to 7.494% by Best Access. Capital Gain was
legally and beneficially owned as to 51% by Mr. Pang and 49% by

Mr. Chang.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of
the Directors or the Chief Executives had any interests or short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the

Required Standard of Dealings.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL ;Ixéa\ AZEERERARGORK
HEd AR

SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, so far as is known to the Directors and 7
the Chief Executives and based on the public records filed on the
website of the Stock Exchange and records kept by the Company,

(other than the Directors and the Chief Executives) in the Shares or

T-mET=A=1+-A BEFRE
BABFIA - R BT 2
RSRARAVEE LR REERE

DA RIERE M 5P 5 336 1545

=17
NG
the interests and short positions of the persons or corporations =TT A BN » FH A LSOEAE R 47
AR
ER

underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

TRCER AR R A 2 S ROR A

Approximate

Name of percentage
substantial Total number of issued
shareholder Capacity of shares share capital
FTERRER 514 IR H 8 HEBTRA
ZBAOBDE
(Note 2)
(fF5E2)
Team King Beneficial owner 924,716,000 (L) 57.51%
ANED EnEEA
Capital Gain Through a controlled corporation 924,716,000 (L) 57.51%
HE RiEhAE kR (Note 1)
(B¥Ex1)
Best Access Through a controlled corporation 924,716,000 (L) 57.51%
Best Access Sl A EE R (Note 1)
(Pf3E1)
Dr. Ma Through a controlled corporation 924,716,000 (L) 57.51%
e RYEHEE S (Note 1)
(B$3E1)
(L) denotes long position L) EXTLE
China Assurance Finance Group Limited FERREREEERAT
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Notes:

1. These shares were registered in the name of Team King, which was legally
and beneficially owned as to 92.506% by Capital Gain and 7.494% by
Best Access. Capital Gain was legally and beneficially owned as to 51% by
Mr. Pang and 49% by Mr. Chang. Best Access was legally and beneficially
owned by Dr. Ma. Under the SFO, each of Mr. Pang and Mr. Chang was
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Team King by virtue of Team
King being controlled by Mr. Pang and Mr. Chang through Capital Gain. Dr.
Ma was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Team King by virtue
of Team King being controlled by Dr. Ma through Best Access.

2. The percentage was calculated on the basis of 1,608,000,000 Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2014.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, there were
no person or corporation (other than the Directors and the Chief
Executives) who had any interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares as recorded in the register of interests required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

OTHER INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UDNER THE SFO

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors, there
was no other person who had interest or short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares that is discloseable under section 336 of the
SFO.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS OF THE DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION” and “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” in this report, at
no time during the year ended 31 December 2014 was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2014 had the Directors and the Chief Executives (including
their spouses and children under 18 years of age) any interest in, or
been granted, or exercised any rights to subscribe for the Shares (or
warrants or debentures, if applicable) and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of the SFO).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME B RESTE

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 1 December ARRNR T ——F+ = — HEMERRE
2011 whereby the Board was authorised, at its absolute discretion &8l it - EFLERERE RS -
and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, to grant  #RFRIEMMEST 2] 2 I&500R ] REEM (5 2 B
options to the Eligible Persons (as defined in the Share Option ETAERAL (F& RERETE) - £
Scheme) to subscribe for the Shares as incentives or rewards for their A SY AEEFTEE Bl 2 8Bk B3R - 3%
contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will be valid EREFZIREE T —NFE+_-_A=+—
and effective for a period of ten years commencing from the Listing HIFFER—E BRI ER °

Date. Movements relating to the share options granted during the

year ended 31 December 2014 were as follows:

Number of share options
BREHA
Name or At At
category of 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December
participants Date of grant 2014 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2014 Exercise period  Exercise price
ERALA RZZ-DF gt/ R-Z-mE
AR RiLAH -A-H ERL BT BA¥  tZA=1-H iy iid |
HKS
BT
Director
g2
Mr. Chen 23 March 2012 15,400,000 - - - 15,400,000 23 March 2012 to 0.63
Rk kSt 2 22 March 2015
=A-t=H ik St
=RZ{=RZ%
e il 3
=A-tzH
Other 23 March 2012 70,000,000 - (4,000,000) - 66,000,000 23 March 2012 to 0.63
Participants ~ —F—— 22 March 2015
HfREA =B=t=A “2--
o =
S
ZA=tzH
21 May 2013 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 1 May 2014 to 119
“2-ZF 30 April 2015
EA-t+-H —T-mF
TA-HAZ
e il 3
MA=tH
21 May 2013 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 1 May 201510 119
= 30 April 2016
7A=t-B “3-1f
il = £
ZE0F
MA=+H
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Number of share options

FREHE

Name or At At

category of 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December

participants Date of grant 2014 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2014 Exercise period  Exercise price

ERALA R-%-D% Bite/ R=%-DF

AR RiLAH -f-H ERH Btit;d BA¥  tZA=1-H iy i
HKS
BT

Other 20 November 2013 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 1 November 2014 to 1.63
Participants ~ —Z—=f% 31 October 2015
(Continued) +-A=tH “I-|F
EfpERA (8) +-A-B%
—E-1f
tA=1-8

20 November 2013 5,000,000 - - — 5,000,000 1 November 2015 to 1.63
2= 31 October 2016
+-A=1E “I-1%
t-§-B%
B

4B

Continuous 23 March 2012 18,000,000 - (16,200,000) — 1,800,000 23 March 2012 to 0.63
Contract —E-CF 22 March 2015
Employees =R=t=H St
BEEftANER ZR-fzRE
—E-1f
=A=tzA

23 March 2012 400,000 (200,000) — 200,000 7 July 2014 1o 0.63
-F - 6 July 2015
=A-t+=R “E-f
tAtAZ
“E-1fF
tARE

23 March 2012 400,000 (200,000) - 200,000 1 August 2014 to 0.63
2 31 August 2015
ZA=1ZH ZE-PE
NR-RZE
_T-1f
NA=t-H

21 May 2013 2,000,000 (2,000,000) — - 1 May 2014 to 1.19
- 30 April 2015
TA-+-A “E-f
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Number of share options
EREHE

Name or At

At

category of 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December

participants Date of grant 2014 Granted Exercised
ERARA RZZ-mE
HAR RiLAH -f-H ER BT

Lapsed 2014 Exercise period  Exercise price

B/ R-E-RE

B&M tZA=1-R i 4
HKS
B

Continuous 21 May 2013 2,000,000 = =
Contract “E3cF

Employees RA=T-H

(Continued)

EfANES

()

20November 2013 18,500,000 - -

—Fm_—

20 November 2013 18,500,000 - -

10 July 2014 - 15,000,000 -
“E-RF
+AtA

10.July 2014 - 10,000,000 -
Bk

- 2,000,000 1 May 2015 o 1.19
30 April 2016
“E-1f
1A-R%E
- Sy
MA=1H

— 18,500,000 1 November 2014 to 1.63
31 October 2015
L
t-5-BE
—I-1f
tA=t-A

- 18,500,000 1 November 2015 to 1.63
31 October 2016
“E-1%
+—ﬂ—ﬁi

= 15,000,000 10July 2014 to 150
9 July 2015
“E-ME
tATRE
—E-1f
tANA

= 10,000,000 10 July 2014 to 1.50
9 July 2015
Subject to
condttions
fulfiled

AR
(BB

Total 159,200,000 25,000,000 (22,600,000)
#it

- 161,600,000

The Share Option Scheme enables the Company to grant options to
the Eligible Persons as incentives or rewards for their contributions
to the Group, the Company conditionally adopted a Share Option
Scheme on 1 December 2011 whereby the Board are authorised,
at their absolute discretion and subject to the terms of the Share
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Option Scheme, to grant options to subscribe for the Shares of the
Company to the Eligible Participant. The Share Option Scheme will
be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing from the
Listing Date.

As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme is 160,900,000 Shares and
represents 10% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Upon acceptance of an option to subscribe for Shares granted
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme (the “Option”), the Eligible
Person shall pay HK$ 1.00 to the Company by way of consideration
for the grant. The Option will be offered for acceptance for a period
of 28 days from the date on which the Option is granted. The
subscription price for the Shares subject to Options will be a price
determined by the Board and notified to each participant and shall
be the highest of: () the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
Options, which must be a day on which trading of Shares take place
on the Stock Exchange (the “Trading Day”); (i) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the 5 Trading Days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the Options; and (jii) the nominal value of a Share. For the purpose
of calculating the subscription price, in the event that on the date of
grant, the Company has been listed on the Stock Exchange for less
than 5 Trading Days, the issue price shall be used as the closing price
for any Trading Day falling within the period before the Listing Date.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme does not exceed
10% of the shares in issue from the Listing Date. The Company may
at any time refresh such limit, subject to the Shareholders’ approval
and issue of a circular in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules,
provided that the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under all the share option schemes of the Company does not exceed
30% of the shares in issue at the time. An option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time
during a period as the Board may determine which shall not exceed
ten years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof.
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CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions for the year are set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

EXEMPTED CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In 2014, the Group has entered into the following transaction with
the following party, which is a connected person of the Company
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules. The following transaction
constitutes a continuing connected transaction which is exempt
from the reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

On 2 August 2009, Xiamen Da Sheng as tenant and Ms. Ma Lee
Kwan (“Ms. Ma”) as landlord entered into a tenancy agreement
in respect of a property (the “Property”) situated at Suites 23B
and 23C, Office Tower, Zhongxin Huiyang Building, No. 59 Hubing
Road North, Xiamen, the PRC with an area of approximately 200
sg. m. for a term of three years commenced on 8 September 2009
and expired on 7 September 2012. The annual rental payable by
the Group for the Property is approximately RMB84,000. On 7
September 2012, Xiamen Da Sheng and Ms. Ma has renewed the
term of the tenancy agreement in respect of the Property for another
three years commenced from 8 September 2012 and expiring on 7
September 2015 at the same annual rental amount of approximately
RMB84,000. The Property is currently being used by the Group as its
Xiamen office.

As Ms. Ma is the mother of Mr. Chang Hoi Nam and the wife of Mr.
Chang Xi Min, she is a connected person of the Company under the
GEM Listing Rules.

Given that the rental payable by the Group in respect of the Property
is comparable and in line with prevailing market rates, the Group
will continue to lease the Property from Ms. Ma until completion of
construction of its Xiamen headquarter.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors, substantial
Shareholders and their respective associates (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

China Assurance Finance Group Limited

FEXZRBEIRS

FAZBEN RS ZFBRHERAFREAM
BEMARMFES2 ©

RZZT—ME  AEEGETIIALFIZA
TR5  BEALTREEFR EHHRRARER
QﬂZ%@AioMT?%%W%%%EQ
R ETRIEIR EHARRE208IR
TZEFH?E NENIBI PR AEIRTE

R-ZEZANENA-H " BEMARE (HF)
HEMELL ([Brx]) (2x) L %ER
o B E P E AL B 59 SR (RIS K E i 1%
1 23B & 23C BT« —IHEE A 200 F 5 K
Z2WE ((ZWE)) FTL—EHAERE  ©
ZETNFAANBRBIER=ZZ—=F 1
A+tBEIH - BEI=F - $$@%%%¥§
Nz EEMEHAARKES4,000T - R=ZF

——®NAtR" ﬁﬁﬁmA%ﬁiﬂ&%
¥S5EZHERH HR RZT—Z—Fh
ANBRERZZFE—RAFNALREE " A
HNAE=F  FEMHENHAAARE 84,000
TL o ZMEBRWASEREREEMMER ©

HRBE R ARIEEEZHR LR
EZ%%’&@#%%WL%&%'&%$
NRZBEANL -

ENAKERZME 2 BNHEHSERITHIS
EREZEE B AEEREERSLHE
X% BEETKIEEZEFEE -

ey Eo

RZT—NFE+_A=+—H #HEEE-
IERREBEZTAIBMEAL (EE LA
%%ﬁij:ﬁ?%%ﬁﬂ)EAZKEEllééﬁ%EAGFGETT§ﬂT§

EEAREXFERINEERFZIEHT
%ﬁ&ﬁ%*°

TERAREMEBERAE



Report of the Directors

o f e

COMPLIANCE ADVISER’S INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2014, except for the compliance adviser
agreement dated 10 July 2013 entered into between the Company
and First Shanghai Capital Limited (“First Shanghai”), neither First
Shanghai (the compliance adviser of the Company), nor any of its
directors, employees or associates had any interests in the securities
of the Company or any other companies of the Group (including
options or rights to subscribe for such securities) pursuant to rule
B6A.32 of GEM Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of
this report. The Company has maintained a sufficient public float in
compliance with Rule 18.08B of the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report detailed corporate governance report is set out in pages 47
to 59 in this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014 have been audited by the Company’s auditor,
BDO Limited, who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the AGM. The Company has not changed
its external auditor since the Listing Date and up to the date of this
annual report. A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

By order of the Board
China Assurance Finance Group Limited
Pang Man Kin Nixon
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

SRRz ER

RZZE—ME+ZA=+—0H  BRAQAH
FE-—LERMEBRAR ([E—LE&]) 7Tz
BMA—T—=FtA+HZAHERZ
S RIBRIZFEAR EHARAIF6A3215K - AR
AZAKRERE - L HENES RS
S BALTHER AR R MALEE 2 EAH
AREFTHEEEAERS (BERBEZS
BT 2 BB AR o

EHARIFRE

BEANRBAI ARG ZER - LRESA
o RMAREBE - ARAI&RD25% 2 #HIT
BRABHEHRARTE - AR EETRIER
EMARAISE 18.08B IR# T R AR RFFE -

AN A fm s
_u;% ==
O EEAREHNAREF47E59H -

B ELEM

BHE_T-NF+_A=1t—HIFEZL
BUBHRREBARA ZZBME R ERE
SERMEBAARARER  FFEREL
BFERABNERBFAS LEESIT -
ARRIALETHEMEEARREAHILELRE
BINEDZ BB - BIEBAB UL ERRIME
BIRBRABRARRIZEE RBRFR
BRAFAE LIRS -

AEEEH
AR RENARA T
TS
e

HF& —E—RAF=A=-1+AH

T EER

46



Corporate Governance Report
R R

47

Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present the corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of its Shareholders and
enhance its corporate value. The Company’s corporate governance
practices are based on the principles and code provisions as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code and Report”) in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Directors are of the view that the Company had
been in compliance with the CG Code and Report throughout the
year ended 31 December 2014 and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors (the “Required Standard of Dealings”).
The Company has confirmed, having made specific enquiries of the
Directors, all the Directors have complied with the Required Standard
of Dealings throughout the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to
the date of this report.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises seven Directors and their respective
roles are set out as follows:
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam Executive Director

and Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director

and Vice Chairman
Executive Director
Non-executive Director

and Chairman of the Board
Independent non-executive

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon

Mr. Chen Xiao Li
Mr. Chang Xi Min

Mr. Chan Kai Wing

Director

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung Independent non-executive
Director

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki Independent non-executive
Director

The biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set
out under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” in this report.

The updated list of Directors and their role and function are published
at the GEM website and the Company’s website (www.cafgroup.hk).

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.

Board Meetings

The Board meets in person or through other electronic means
of communication to determine overall strategic direction and
objectives and approve quarterly, interim and annual results, and
other significant matters. The Board held 17 meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2014. Individual attendance records of each
Director at the respective Board and committee meetings are set out
in the table on page 55 of this report.
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Notices with agenda of the Board meeting are duly given to each
Director. Minutes of the Board meeting are kept by the Company
Secretary and is open for inspection by any Directors.

If a Director has an interest in the resolutions to be considered by the
Board which the Board has determined to be material, the Board will
ensure the resolutions will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting
rather than written resolutions and the board will also ensure that
an adequate number of independent non-executive Directors are
involved in the consideration of the relevant resolutions. Independent
non-executive Directors are encouraged to take an active role in
Board meetings.

The Board and the Management of the Company

The Board and the management of the Company (the “Management”)
work together toward synergy in order to strive for excellent
performance of the Company. The Company is governed by the
Board, which is responsible for overseeing the overall strategy and
development of the Company, as well as monitoring the internal control
policies and evaluating the financial performance of the Group. The
Board sets the overall strategies and directions for the Group with a
view to developing its business and enhancing the Shareholders’ value.
The day to day management, administration, operation of the Group
and adoption of the Company’s strategies and polices are delegated to
the Management. The clear responsibilities division between the Board
and the Management ensured the power and authority are balanced
and not concentrated in any one individual.

Independent non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three independent non-
executive Directors which representing more than one-third of the
Board, and with at least one of them having appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Independent non-executive Directors, together with
the executive Directors, ensure that the Board prepares its financial
and other mandatory reports in strict compliance with the relevant
standards. The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the Independent non-executive Directors
and believes that their independence is in compliance the Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Relationships between the Board

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam, an executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, is the son of Mr. Chang Xi Min, a non-
executive Director and the Chairman of the Board. Save for the
aforesaid, none of the Directors related to one another.

Continuous Professional Development of the
Directors

Each Director receives comprehensive and formal induction and
orientation to ensure he/she adequately understand the operations
and business of the Group. The Company also provided detailed
director’s responsibilities and obligations statement pursuant to the
GEM Listing Rules for the Director to review and study. In addition,
materials in relation to regularly update on latest development
in relation to the GEM Listing Rules, other applicable regulatory
requirements and the Group’s business and governance policies (the
“Reading Materials in relation to Continuous Professional
Developments”) were circulated to the Directors. Continuing
briefings and seminars for the directors will be arranged as
necessary. The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional developments to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills periodically.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Directors participated
in the continuous professional developments in the following manner:

Reading Materials in
relation to Continuous
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Attending seminars/
courses/conferences
in relation to Continuous

Name Professional Developments Professional Developments

#H MERRSESE HERRFESERRY
BR MR BHe RE/ &3

Executive Directors HiTEE v/

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam Rl EE v

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon ENBEE v

Mr. Chen Xiao Li /M A

Non-executive Director HHITEE

Mr. Chang Xi Min KA E v

Independent non-executive Directors BYHHTEE

Mr. Chan Kai Wing [ v

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung MIKELE v

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki FEERE v/ v/
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Chang Xi Min is currently the Chairman of the Board and Mr.
Chang Hoi Nam is currently the Chief Executive Officer. In accordance
with the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code and Report, the
roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate and
exercised by different person.

In addition, the Chairman of the Board has taken primary
responsibility for ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are established.

APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of three years from 6 January
2012 (renewable automatically for successive terms of one year
unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the service
agreement).

Non-executive Director and the independent non-
executive Directors

Each of the non-executive Director and the independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company on 1 December 2014 for a term with effect from 1
December 2014 until 30 November 2015.

In accordance with the articles 84 of the Articles, one-third of the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third shall retire from the office and being eligible
offer themselves for re-election provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The Directors to be retired by rotation shall be those who have been
longest in office since their last appointment or re-appointment.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in order to maintain high level of corporate governance
standard of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on
1 December 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with
code provision B.1.1 of the CG Code and Report. The Remuneration
Committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Pang Man
Kin Nixon, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Chan Kai Wing (chairman of Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Lam
Raymond Shiu Cheung.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and
structure relating to all Directors and senior management, to review
performance based remuneration and to ensure none of the Directors
determine their own remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee determined the
policy for the remuneration of executive directors, assessed the
performance of executive Directors and approved the terms of
executive Director’s services contracts. The Remuneration Committee
adopted the model which is described in the code provision B.1.2 (c)(ii)
of the CG Code and Report, it makes recommendations to the board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive directors and
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended
31 December 2014. Individual attendance records of each member
of the Remuneration Committee are set out in the table on page 55
of this report.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 1
December 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with
code provision A.5.2 of the CG Code and Report. The Nomination
Committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Chang
Hoi Nam, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Chan Kai Wing and Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung (chairman of the
Nomination Committee).

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on regular basis; identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, to access
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and to
make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

During the financial year, the Nomination Committee determined the
policy for the nomination of Directors. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for identifying potential directors, reviewing the
credentials of the potential director base on his/her qualifications,
skills, experience, credibility and reputation. Once the Nomination
Committee confirmed the potential director(s) is/are qualified to
be the Director(s) and his/her appointments are in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole, it will make
recommendations to the Board for approval. The director appointed
by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting after his/her appointment and shall be subject to re-
election by the Shareholders at the meeting.

The director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting
of the Company after his/her appointment and shall be subject to
reelection by the Shareholders at the meeting.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended 31
December 2014. Individual attendance records of each member of
the Nomination Committee are set out in the table on page 55 of this
report.
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 1 December 2011
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 and 5.29
of the GEM Listing Rules and code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code
and Report. The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kai Wing (chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung and Mr. Chow Shiu Ki.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor, to approve their remuneration and
terms of engagement, to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standards, to review the
financial statements and material advice in respect of financial
reporting; and oversee financial reporting system and internal control
procedures of the Company.

The Audit Committee has met its responsibilities to review the Group’s
quarterly reports for the three months and nine months ended 31
March 2014 and 30 September 2014 respectively, interim report
for the six months ended 30 June 2014 and the Group’s audited
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2014 and provided
advice and comments thereon. The Audit Committee also made
recommendations to the Board and the management in respect of
the Group’s financial reporting and internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the year ended 31
December 2014. Individual attendance records of each member of
the Audit Committee are set out in the table on page 55 of this report.
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Directors’ Attendance Record at Meetings

Details of the attendance of the Directors at the meetings of the
Board and its respective committees during the year ended 31
December 2014 are as follows:

EXSRLFERR

E-T-MET-AS+-ALFE B
EREFERHERBEEREGZHEFHEN
I

Nomination ~ Remuneration Audit Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Attended/ Attended/ Attended/ Attended/ Attended/
Eligible to Eligible to Eligible to Eligible to Eligible to
Name of Director attend attend attend attend attend
gz Eze REzEe  HMZEE  BNZEE
L S R g3 RRBEEAE
BitR/ BitE/ EHiE/ Bt/ BitE/
REREE  REREE  REREE  AEBEE  REKLR
Executive Directors HiEE
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam eyt 1717 17 N/A N/A 17
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon YNBRE 1717 NA 111 N/A 11
Mr. Chen Xiao Li B/ FIEAE mnr N/A N/A N/A 11
Non-executive Director FHTEE
Mr. Chang Xi Min RE#ELE mnr N/A N/A N/A 11
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BV #E7EZ
Mr. Chan Kai Wing REREE 1847 111 111 44 0
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung EEEE 1447 17 17 44 0A
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki REELE 16/17 N/A N/A 44 1
Corporate Governance Function EEERMEE

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties in accordance with code provision D.3.1 to the CG Code
and Report which are included to develop and review the Company
policies and practices on corporate governance, to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management of the Company, the issuer’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and reviewing the issuer’s compliance with the CG
Code and Report and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

China Assurance Finance Group Limited
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AUDITOR AND THEIR REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2014, remuneration paid and
payable to the auditor of the Group (the “Auditor”) are approximately
HK$570,000 for audit services and HK$476,000 for non-audit
services respectively.

Directors’ Acknowledgement

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Group. The Directors are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement of the Auditor about their reporting responsibilities on
the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014 is set out in the section “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this
report.

Financial Reporting

The Management has provided to all Directors quarterly updates
with quarterly consolidated financial statement of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient details during the
regular Board meetings. In addition, the Management has provided all
members of the Board, in a timely manner, updates on any material
changes to the performance, position and prospects of the Company
and sufficient information for matters brought before the Board. The
Management will spare no effort to provide all members of the board
with more detailed and promptly monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the issuer’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail in coming future.
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system in order to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the assets of the Company against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper books and
records for the provision of reliable financial information, and ensuring
compliance with the relevant rules and regulations.

The Audit Committee reviewed the overall effectiveness of the internal
control system and reported its findings and made recommendations
to the Board. The Directors have conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The Board will continue to assess the
effectiveness of internal controls by considering reviews performed by
the Audit Committee and executive management.

The Board and the Audit Committee have same view on
reappointment of external auditor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Ms. Wong Po Ling, Pauline (“Ms.
Wong”) as the Company Secretary since 30 September 2013. She
is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and she possesses more than 15 years of experience
in mergers and acquisitions and corporate governance matters. In
accordance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Ms. Wong has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the year ended 31 December 2014.

The primary corporate contact person of the Company is Mr. Pang

Man Kin Nixon, an executive Director and the vice chairman of the
Company.

China Assurance Finance Group Limited
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to the article 58 of the Articles, any one or more Members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

Such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures for the Shareholders to put their
enquiries to the Board

The Company endeavor to maintain two way communications with
the Shareholders through various channels. The Shareholders are
encouraged to put their enquiries about the Group through the
Company’s email at info@cafgroup.hk or by mail to the principle
address of the Company at Units 03-05, 17/F., K. Wah Centre,
191 Java Road, North Point, Hong Kong. All the enquiries are dealt
with in timely manner. The Shareholders are also encouraged to
attend the AGM and extraordinary general meetings (the “EGM”)
of the Company and to put their enquiries to the Board directly.
Notices are duly being circulated to the Shareholders in order to
ensure each Shareholder is informed to attend the AGM and the
EGM. The Chairman of the Board, chairmen of the Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit Committee and the
senior Management attend the aforesaid meetings and respond
to the Shareholders’ enquiries in a promptly manner. The detailed
procedures for conducting a poll are set out in the proxy forms and
will be explained by the chairmen of the AGM and EGM orally in the
beginning of the aforesaid meetings.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals by
Shareholders at Shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders of the Company may include a resolution to be
considered at an extraordinary general meeting. The requirements
and procedures are set out above in the paragraph headed
“Procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting”.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is
a key to enhance investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open
and timely disclosure of corporate information to its Shareholders and
investment public.

The Company updates its Shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual, interim
and quarterly reports. The corporate website of the Company (www.
cafgroup.hk) has provided an effective communication platform to the
public and the Shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there had not been any
changes in the Company’s constitutional documents.

China Assurance Finance Group Limited
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IBDO

EEE 1 +8522218 8288
{8H : +8522815 2239

Tel : +8522218 8288
Fax: +852 28152239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

ERTHEEPI15E
XRHD2518

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of China Assurance Finance Group Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Assurance Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 147,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2014, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lam Hung Yun, Andrew

Practising Certificate Number P04092
Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—

Z-MFE+-_A=t—RHIFE

2014 2013
—F-mF —F—=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BRE AR¥T T ARETTT
Revenue Weas 8 18,836 16,316
Other income H A 8 2,051 3,296
Administrative and operating expenses 1T I &8 F sz (25,269) (23,650)
Finance cost BLE R 10 (6,042) (1,863)
Equity-settled shared-based payment A& BEEN K
expenses (A AZER) A 30(iv) (17,001) (2,515)
Loss before income tax FriS Tt E1E 9 (27,425) (8,416)
Income tax expense FrE iR 12 (2,758) (2,696)
Loss for the year REEEE (30,183) (11,112)
Other comprehensive income KAEHEA A
attributable to the owners of FEARE 2 W as
the Company may be reclassified to (ATR AR HAR
profit or loss in subsequent periods B ABxH)
— Exchange (loss)/gain on translation ~ — X 3AEIMNE & 275
of financial statements of MBHRRER
foreign operations (B8) ks (47) 292
Total comprehensive income for the year AN 2 U A (258 (30,230) (10,820)
Loss for the year attributable to: JEIEAREEFHE -
Owners of the Company ZiN/NIEZ N (30,516) (11,172)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR 333 60
(30,183) (11,112)
Total comprehensive income EiE 2 ERGERE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RREHEB A (30,563) (10,880)
Non-controlling interests SRR 333 60
(30,230) (10,820)
Loss per share — Basic and BREE — EXR
diluted (RMB cent(s)) #wE (AR%ED) 14 (1.92) 0.71)
ANNUAL REPORT 2014 —T-MEFR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A o B B IR O AR

As at 31 December 2014 R=ZF—WF+—-A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
NOt\eS RMB’000 RM/B’OOO
BaE ARBT T ARETTT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FERENEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB NEE 16 110,247 107,516
Land use rights =+ b A 17 35,596 36,407
Deposits paid BEffi&e 19 23,500 23,500
169,343 167,423
Current assets RENVEE
Account and other receivables JE MRk e B A FE WAL 20 64,582 43,579
Entrusted loan receivables FEWE B 21 18,000 —
Pledged bank deposits EEMRITER 22 44,749 54,609
Restricted bank deposits SRR BRI TR 23 18,701 16,191
Cash and cash equivalents HekREEEEE 24 42,885 9,332
188,917 123,711
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals, other payables and FEETER - HAER
deferred income TRIR SRFE A 25 95,922 52,244
Other borrowings HtEE 26 45,893 23,639
Finance lease liabilities BMEREARE 27 611 —
Current tax liabilities BNEAf IR B (& 5,672 5,545
148,098 81,428
Net current assets REEEFE 40,819 42,283
Total assets less current liabilities @& ERRBEE 210,162 209,706
Non-current liability FEREBEE
Finance lease liabilities mEHESRE 27 1,594 —
Net assets BEEFE 208,568 209,706
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners BRAREEA
of the Company LR
Share capital LEIN 28 13,084 12,907
Reserves {15 29(a) 188,068 189,716
201,152 202,623
Non-controlling interests eIy 7,416 7,083
Total equity SR 208,568 209,706
On behalf of the Board
REESE
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam RELEE £ 4 Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon &2 X 2 %4
Director £% Director %
China Assurance Finance Group Limited FERREHEEERAT
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As at 31 December 2014 R-Z—F+—-F=+—H

2014 2013
—E-MmEF —=—=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BRE AR® T ARETTT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRRIRE 18 51,110 51,110
Current assets RBEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUH B A B FUE 18 169,574 133,438
Other receivables, prepayments HE A pEWRRIR - TR RIE
and deposits paid KEfMES 5,275 12,301
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMRESHEEE 641 350
175,490 146,089
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FEFTERA R EMERFUE 1,809 433
Other borrowing Hibtg s 26 22,155 —
23,964 433
Net current assets REEEFE 151,526 145,656
Total assets less current liabilities Z2EEBLRBAES 202,636 196,766
EQUITY s
Share capital &N 28 13,084 12,907
Reserves e 29(b) 189,552 183,859
Total equity TS 202,636 196,766

On behalf of the Board
RERESE

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam RELEE £ 4
Director £%F

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ - — &+ - B =+—HIIFE

Non-
controlling Total
Equity attributable to owners of the Company interests equity
LG PN FERER  RRAE
Retained
Share Share Share profits/
capital  premium  Exchange option Accumulate
(note 28) (note 29(d))  reserve reserve  (losses) Total
BE  ROEE REER/
(Wkos) (Mioo(d) ENRG BRERE Zit (58 fif
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OC0O  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2013 —E-=§-f-H 12539 129817 10,430 11,340 26,154 190,280 7,023 197,308
Equity-settled share-based RHARGD BRERR
payment granted (ARAES)
(note 30 1) (FrzE300) - - — 2515 — 2515 — 2515
Lapse of share options BIREXN
(note 30) (FzE30) - - - (31) 31 = = =
Exercise of share options i
(note 30) (Pit3E30) 368 23,611 - (3.271) - 20,708 = 20,708
Transaction with owners BEARS 38 23611 - (787) 31 23203 - %2
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - {1 11 60 (11,112
Other comprehensive AEEHM
income for the year el - - 202 - - 202 = 202
Total comprehensive RER2A
income for the year W% - = 202 = (11,172 (10,880) 60  (10,820)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=%
and 1 January 2014 TZA=+-Bk
“T-{F-A-H 12,907 163,428 10,722 10,553 15,013 202,623 7,083 209,706
Equity-settled share-based Rl ARG BEERR
payment granted (URELE)
(note 30 (i) & i) (Pt 30() R (i) - - - 17,001 - 17,001 - 17,001
Exercise of share options IR EERE
(note 30) (Fit3E30) 177 14,132 - (2,218) - 12,091 - 12,001
Transaction with owners FEARS 177 14132 - 14,783 - 29,092 - 29,092
Loss for the year rERER - - - - (30,516)  (30,516) 333 (30,183)
Other comprehensive AEEHM
income for the year el - - (47) - - (47) - @7
Total comprehensive AEEZA
income for the year gt - - (47) - (30,516)  (30,563) 333 (30,230)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-R%
+-A=1+-H 13,084 167,560 10,675 25,336 (15503) 201,152 7416 208,568
China Assurance Finance Group Limited FERREHEEERAT



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEBEmE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —MF+—-A=+—HI-FE

2014 2013
—E-MmEF ==
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BRE AR¥T T ARETTT
Cash flows from operating activities &E&FBHRHERE
Loss before income tax PSR piEs 18 (27,425) (8,416)
Adjustments for: FEE -
Amortisation for land use rights 3 {56 PR A B 9 811 811
Depreciation of property, Y% - B REREITE
plant and equipment 9 2,385 1,737
Bank interest income ERITHIBUA 8 (1,331) (2,800)
Equity-settled share-based VARR 10 R EZERTFR
payment expenses (A AZE) A 30(iv) 17,001 2,515
Impairment loss on account receivables  FEUBR FR E 1B 9 - 6,500
Finance cost A& AR 10 6,042 1,863
Operating (loss)/profit before working ~ &E& & B BRI 2 4%
capital changes (E518) /&7 (2,517) 2,210
Increase in account receivables, FEURBR FRIE AN -
net of deferred income HIBREEUTA (4,105) (2,247)
Increase in other receivables, H bW RIE « B 5RIE
prepayments and deposits paid R Efmegm (14,771) (19,318)
Increase in entrusted loan receivables  FEURZEEE &N (18,000) —
Increase in restricted bank deposits R BRI TR RGN (2,510) (1,780)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BERIRITER
bank deposits L (3Ehn) 9,860 (7,220)
Increase in accruals and other payables FE=TE A M E b FE {F ZRIEE AN 4,923 1,611
Net cash generated used in operations ~ AX &2 FT A 2 IR 4 %% (27,120) (26,744)
Interest received B U B 2,471 3,216
Income tax paid EAIFTSH (2,631) (3,916)
Net cash used in operating activities & FETAZREFE (27,280) (27,444)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
A ERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—ZT—WNF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—F-mF =
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETT

Cash flows from investing activities REZEHZHERE

Purchases of property, BEWE - BEM&EE

plant and equipment (11,125) (13,503)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - HE R

plant and equipment BABFTS R - 210
Increase in receipt in advance TR FRIAIE AN 42,193 3,000

Net cash generated from/(used in) REFEEESE " (FrA)
investing activities ZEEFHE 31,068 (10,293)

Cash flows from financing activities BEESHRERE

New proceeds from borrowings EEFSRIAERE 22,254 23,639
Net proceeds from exercise of TR IRERTS

share options FRIEFEE 12,091 20,708
Interest paid B E (4,533) (1,572)
Net cash generated from MEETEEEZ

financing activities BEFE 29,812 42,775
Net increase in cash and RekFAEEEHERZ

cash equivalents HhNEEE 33,600 5,038
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEEREE)

changes, net FEFE (47) 292
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—HZERER

at 1 January BHE&ZEEER 9,332 4,002
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=A=+—-B=x=

31 December BHeRBEESEEER 42,885 9,332

China Assurance Finance Group Limited TERASHEBERAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Assurance Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 10 March 2011. The registered office of
the Company is the office of Codan Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares
have been listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”)
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 6 January 2012.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 18 to the financial statements. The Company
and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”
hereafter. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Capital Gain
Investments Holdings Limited (“Capital Gain”), a limited liability
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
were approved by the board of directors on 25 March 2015.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective terms include
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated
financial statements also include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and applicable Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 i fi e

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continuec)

(b) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost convention. The significant
accounting policies that have been used in the preparation
of these financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

3.1 Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs

-effective on 1 January 2014

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities

HKFRS 12 and

HKAS 27 (2011)

The adoption of these amendments has no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 32 — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by
adding appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies
when an entity “currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off” and when a gross settlement mechanism is
considered equivalent to net settlement. The amendments
are applied retrospectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs

-effective on 1 January 2014 continueq)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011) —
Investment Entities

The amendments apply to a particular class of businesses
that qualify as investment entities. An investment entity’s
business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns
from capital appreciation, investment income or both.
It evaluates the performance of its investments on a fair
value basis. Investment entities could include private
equity organisations, venture capital organisations,
pension funds and investment funds.

The amendments provide an exception to the
consolidation requirements in HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements and require investment entities to
measure particular subsidiaries at fair value through profit
or loss rather than to consolidate them. The amendments
also set out the disclosure requirements for investment
entities. The amendments are applied retrospectively
subject to certain transitional provisions.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

3.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new/amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by

the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle?

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle!

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements

2012-2014 Cycle®

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation?®
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
(2011) Employee Contributions'
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements?®
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments®

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers*

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions
occurring on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

J Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

3.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that all of
the pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s
accounting policy for the first period beginning after the
effective date of the pronouncements. Information on new
or amended HKFRSs that are expected to have impact on
the Group’s accounting policies is provided below. Certain
other new or amended HKFRSs have been issued but are
not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 — Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of a
revenue-based depreciation method for items of property,
plant and equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38
introduce a rebuttable presumption that amortisation
based on revenue is not appropriate for intangible assets.
This presumption can be rebutted if either the intangible
asset is expressed as a measure of revenue or revenue
and the consumption of the economic benefits of the
intangible asset are highly correlated.

Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011) — Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

The amendments permit contributions that are
independent of the number of years of service to be
recognised as a reduction in the service cost in the period
in which the service is rendered instead of allocating the
contributions to periods of service.

Amendments to HKAS 27 — Equity Methods in Separate
Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the equity
method in accounting for its investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates in its separate financial
statements.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

3.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

Under the standard, financial assets are classified into
financial assets measured at fair value or at amortised
cost depending on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair value gains
or losses will be recognised in profit or loss except for
those non-trade equity investments, which the entity will
have a choice to recognise the gains and losses in other
comprehensive income. HKFRS 9 carries forward the
recognition and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities
that are designated at fair value through profit or loss,
where the amount of change in fair value attributable
to change in credit risk of that liability is recognised in
other comprehensive income unless that would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9
retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for de-recognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

3.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

4. FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong Dollar
(“HK$"). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the functional currency of
the primary economic environment in which the principal
subsidiaries of the Group operate. All values are rounded to
the nearest thousand (“RMB’000”) unless otherwise stated.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year (if any) are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or business is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure non-controlling interests in the subsidiary either
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are deducted
from equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5.1 Basis of consolidation continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period (a
maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest
and non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which non-controlling
interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes in
equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to
such non-controlling interests even if this results in non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5.1

5.2

Basis of consolidation (continueq)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may
be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated at
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (“CGU’s”)
value-in-use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU
to which the asset belongs.

China Assurance Finance Group Limited

5. TESTHERME &)

5.1

5.2

S A AE e
mEEE @)

Bt =]

B 8 2 ) Ty HE AN B AT T 12
B2ZHIRET - MRFETIE
BM=EREZE - BARQ R R
B AHBIRETITEREN
APERBNRE S 2 R A
ESRARKESZAEZFME
H MENEREENREER
MR ESOE - SEFTELER
BN s R = A R R
P RlgEMThHEEHRE
il

M B QR 2 RE B IR ARUR
BEEE (WE) FEARRREZ 87
AREK - IMEBRRZEERAR
BIARIRE YN AL B S R

FEMEERE

EHRBETR  HEE (&
BERI) BELFERER
& BEFAREEZ ATRE S
Mo BEZANDSBENREE
IREELEN ([REELE
fi7]) 2 EREEREAFERG
ERA (UAREERE) GHE
TS REEM[BIFTE - HEHE
EX AT BN EMEE
HBEMARZBER NEERSR
- RIRIREISBRNEEMBZ
ReETEVETE -

TERAREMEEERAE



Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5.2

2.3

Impairment of non-financial assets (continueq)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the year
in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
profit or loss in the year in which it arises.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction-
in-progress (“CIP”), are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A 285 i T i

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5.3 Property, plant and equipment Continuea)

Depreciation is calculated on straight-line method to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment,
other than CIP, to its estimated residual value over its
estimated useful life, as follows:

Buildings 20 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 5 years
office equipment

Leasehold improvements 3 to 5 years or over the

lease term whichever

is the shorter

Motor vehicles 5to 10 years

The assets’ estimated residual values, estimated useful
lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at least at the end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gain or loss on disposal
or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the
asset is de-recognised and is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5.3

54

Property, plant and equipment continued)

CIP which mainly represents property, plant and
equipment under construction is stated at cost less
any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct and indirect costs incurred during
the periods of construction, installation and testing. When
the assets concerned are completed and ready for use,
the costs are reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets, or where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A 285 i T i

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5.4 Leases (Continued)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
lease commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments
are analysed between capital and interest. The interest
element is charged to profit or loss over the period of the
lease and is calculated so that it represents a constant
proportion of the lease liability. The capital element
reduces the balance owed to the lessor.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under finance
lease agreements corresponds to those applied to
comparable acquired assets. The corresponding finance
lease liability is reduced by lease payments less finance
charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss on straight-line method over
the lease terms except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the time pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

54

2.9

9.6

Leases (Continued)

Land use rights

Upfront payments made to acquire land held under an
operating lease are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated on straight-line method over the term of
the lease except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived
by the Group from use of the land.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of
capital are deducted from capital (net of any related
income tax benefit) to the extend they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity transaction.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired
and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at the end of reporting period.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when,
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Regular way purchases of financial
assets are recognised on trade date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A 285 i T i

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5.6 Financial assets (Continued)

De-recognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the instruments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. These are initially recognised at fair
value plus directly attributable transaction costs and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method, less any impairment losses. Amortised
cost is calculated taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction
cost.

At the end of each reporting period, financial assets are
reviewed to assess whether there is objective evidence of
impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5.6 Financial assets (Continued)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
the assets in the group.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
financial assets has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The amount of the loss
is recognised in profit or loss of the period in which the
impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.
The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss of
the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A 285 i T i

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5.7 Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include accruals and other
payables, finance lease liabilities and other borrowings.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs.

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

All the Group’s financial liabilities are recognised initially at
their fair value, net of directly attributable transaction costs
incurred and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5.8

5.9

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in profit or loss.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of reporting period
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events not
wholly within the control of the Group, are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A 285 i T i

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5.10 Income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.
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S 5 R M
5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuec

5. TESFHEME »

5.1 Revenue recognition 511 Iz &

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ income from financial guarantee (as the case
may be, including consultancy services related to
issuance of financial guarantee) is recognised over
the contract period on a time apportionment basis;

(b) interest income is calculated on time-proportion
basis using effective interest method.

5.12 Employee benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans. The Group operates a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”),
for all of its employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are required
to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of employees’
salaries to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as employees render services during the year. The
Group’s obligations under these plans are limited to the
fixed percentage contributions payable.

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

WamaRARERE AJEESK
7 ) 2 Ko WA BE BT 52 A B I 2 A
TEEEBAR

(@ MEERABEA RFIE
AME » BREERHEBERE
AR ERRTE) 8K
[ LE ) B 1R & 4 B ) #E

7 .
e 7

() ISR R AR
R L I B o

512 EEEF

1B B ZRIKER T 5 1B E B
FHEIRM - NEBERBRHIER
BT EGRPIRR L — R E B
BEAETE ([REEE))
HEREERSEBESEZ
BE  -HRREEEAFEZX
—AS L -

REBRFPEARLME ([
) 2EZMBARENMERR
SLERBEAMTHHRFEEZS
RIEAR TS - BRAMBARA
REEFHZETADHLHPRE
REFFEIHK -

HARFENEEB RERBEE
BaERAMX - AREREZ
FEzEFERENEERAD
FEAESK -

BB RN AR ETELIOLR
HR SRR RARERDS R
9B AR 2 B AR 2
SHWR -

T EER

88



89

Notes to the Financial Statements

A 285 i T i

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5.13 Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit
or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve within equity. Non-
market vesting conditions are taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments expected
to vest at the end of each reporting period so that,
ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over the
vesting period is based on the number of options that
eventually vest. Market vesting conditions are factored
into the fair value of the options granted. As long as all
other vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made
irrespective of whether the market vesting conditions
are satisfied. The cumulative expense is not adjusted
for failure to achieve a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are
modified before they vest, the increase in the fair value
of the options, measured immediately before and after
the modification, is also recognised in profit or loss
over the remaining vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons
other than employees and others providing similar
services, the fair value of goods or services received
is recognised in profit or loss unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets. A
corresponding increase in equity is recognised. For
cash-settled share based payments, a liability is
recognised at the fair value of the goods or services
received.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuec

5. TESFHEME »

5.13 Share-based payments (Continueq) 513 AR BEB 2K 4

Upon exercise of share options, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve and the proceeds
received net of a directly attributable transaction costs up
to the nominal value of the share issued are reallocated
to share capital with any excess being recorded as share
premium. When the share options are lapsed, forfeited or
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

5.14 Foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”).

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At reporting date, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date retranslation
of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5.14 Foreign currencies (Continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into RMB.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into RMB at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income and expenses
have been converted into RMB at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates or at the average rates over
the reporting period provided that the exchange rates do
not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from this
procedure have been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the exchange
reserve in equity.

5.15 Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

()  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5.15 Related parties (continuea)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

U)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

B 5 i BT i

5, FESFBEME »)
515 8&E 5 (@)

(b)

@R NIER - ZERE
AR LN A AR

) ZEERAKEBER—
SEZKE (ISR
EIRRCIENGIVEES |

B 5 B ARRAE) ;
i) —EEBAERE—E®
ZHMERATRAEE D
¥ (IAXE—SEKE
ZHENRRAED
¥ mums—ERA

ZEEXE)

(i) MEERBERERSE
=AZEERE

vy ERBAE="EERZ
REB=HZBERT]
v HEBAAKENE
AEERREE

B 8 fa % M 3% 3
BemAEEl

Hm

V) ZEEX(QEFRE
ATEEhIs RS

(viiy R (@) PT R E B & 8
BEEAFEZ AL
EEE (EREZE
NA)) BREBABR
— AL

\o

)

T EER

92



93

Notes to the Financial Statements

A 285 i T i

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5.15 Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

5.16 Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy on “Provisions and contingent
liabilities”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policy on “Revenue
Recognition”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 R M
5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuec

5, FEFTTHERUE »
516 B EIEREYN )

5.16 Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
contracted fee of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income. Where the contracted fee is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, it is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
contracted fee is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of the corresponding liability.

5.17 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major operations.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
are the same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5.18 Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group
for the cost of an asset are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset
by way of reduced depreciation expense.

5.19 Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recgonised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcome that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities to
be affected in the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(i) Impairment of receivables

The Group’s provision policy for doubtful debts is based
on the ongoing evaluation of the collectability and
ageing analysis of the outstanding receivables and on
management’s judgement. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer and the related
parties. If the financial conditions of the customers and
other debtors of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
impairment may be required.

(ii) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group makes
an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset. This
requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the CGU
to which the asset is allocated. Estimating value-in-use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the CGU and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. A change in the estimated
future cash flows and/or the discount rate applied will
result in an adjustment to the estimated impairment
provision previously made.
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6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(iii) Estimated useful lives of property, plant and

(iv)

equipment

In determining the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, the Group has to consider various factors,
such as expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset,
and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is made based
on the experience of the Group with similar assets that
are used in a similar way. Depreciation charge is revised
if the estimated useful lives of items of property, plant
and equipment are different from the previous estimation.
Estimated useful lives are reviewed, at the end of each
reporting period, based on changes in circumstances.

Estimation of provision for financial
guarantee issued

Management reviews the creditworthiness of its
customers and re-assesses the fair value of collaterals
of individual customers for financial guarantee issued
by the Group from time to time. The best evidence of
fair value of collaterals is current prices in an active
market for similar collaterals in the same location and
condition. In the absence of such information, the Group
determines the amount within a range of reasonable fair
value estimates. In making its judgement, management
considers information from a variety of source including
public accessible sources, such as internet searches,
recent transaction prices, statistics on recent market
development and market quote. If the management
consider the financial conditions of the Group’s customers
deteriorate or the customers would default in payment
or contracts, provisions will be made and the amount is
based on the exposure which is the maximum guarantee
amounts less the value of the collaterals.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An operating segment is a component of the Group that is
engaged in business activities from which the Group may earn
revenue and incur expenses, and is identified on the basis of
the internal management reporting information that is provided
to and regularly reviewed by the Group’s executive directors
in order to allocate resources and assess performance of the
segment. Executive directors have determined that the Group
has only one single business component/reportable segment as
the Group is only engaged in the provision of financial guarantee
service which is the basis to allocate resources and assess
performance.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
Group’s principal place of operation is in the PRC. For the
disclosures requirements under HKFRS 8, the Group regards
the PRC as its country of domicile. All the Group’s revenue and
non-current assets are principally attributable to the PRC, being
the single geographical region.

Geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the services are provided. All revenue from external
customers is mainly sourced from the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, there
were no customers with whom transaction exceeded 10% of
the Group’s revenue.
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S 5 i Ff

8. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue from the Group’s principal activities, which is also
the Group’s turnover, represents the income from provision of
financial guarantee and advisory services. Revenue and other
income recognised for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
2013 are as follows:

Wz K E A A

RASKEEZEBHAE e - B
SE SRR - EIRERE RN
AR BN - BHE-_T-—MFER_-F
— =t -A=1+—BHLFECERZ

W R EMMBANT
2014 2013
—E—mF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETTT

Revenue Wz
Income from financial guarantee RE ERUA 18,836 16,316
Other income HE MU A
Bank interest income RITHIBULA 1,331 2,800
Government grants RS RERL 720 496
2,051 3,296
China Assurance Finance Group Limited FERREHEEERAT



10.

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 i BT i

Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging:

9. FEHiAIEE

FISHBIEER MR A TIRR&REHE

2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARET T
Auditor’s remuneration = ERRT BN & 487 447
Depreciation of property, Yz - WE K&
plant and equipment BEE 2,385 1,737
Amortisation for land use rights s PR A 8 811 811
Employee benefit expenses (including EERAMXZ (B
directors’ remuneration (note 11)) EEMWE (F1EE11))
Salaries and wages HeRkIE 5,034 4,507
Pension scheme contributions RIREFT B
— Defined contribution plans — ERRHEREE 529 486
Equity-settled share-based payments LARR{D BEEERFR
(ARA&EE) A 13,384 1,257
18,947 6,250
Equity-settled share-based paymentto ~ [AIfEE RESFLINZ B EE
eligible persons other than employees AL AR BEE R
and directors (ARRA#EE) 3,617 1,258
Operating lease charges in respect VIEMRE K HEER
of properties 2,084 1,511
Impairment loss on account receivables  EUWERFUREE 1B - 6,500
FINANCE COST 10. RE A
2014 2013
—E-lmF —T—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARET T
Interest on other borrowings HibEEZFE
— wholly repayable within 1 year — BRERN—FA
with repayable on demand clause ZHIEE 5,883 1,863
— wholly repayable within 1 year R—FAZHEER 35 —
Interest on finance leases RMEMEZHNE 124 =
6,042 1,863
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 11. EEM4 R 2 & = &b
Ax

PAID EMPLOYEES

(a) Directors’ remuneration

Emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 (2013: 7)

directors were as follows:

(a) EEME

TREE(ZE—=F:78) 2
B sEAMEEHIT ¢

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind contributions Total
=11 Bifsd
e RENAZ BE 3 ait
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT AR®ETT AREFRT
Year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-Z-MF
+ZA=t-HLEE
Executive directors: HiTEE -
Mr. Pang i — 496 13 509
Mr. Chang RIEE — 484 6 490
Mr. Chen Xiao Li BRI — 283 — 283
— 1,263 19 1,282
Non-executive director: HHRITEE -
Mr. Chang Xi Min RA LA 9 — — %4
Independent non-executive directors: BV B TEE -
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung ~~ #kE %4 % — — %
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki RER L L 94 — 94
Mr. Chan Kai Wing BRI % E % — — %
282 — 282
Total Bt 376 1,263 19 1,658
China Assurance Finance Group Limited TERASHEBERAR
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 11. EEMEe R E 2 E S

PAID EMPLOYEES (continuea) AT @)
(a) Directors’ remuneration Continued) (a) EEME @)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contributions Total
ARl RikE
we  REDHE REIGSA A&t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTR AREBTT ARETRL

Year ended 31 December 2013 HE-T—-=%

+ZA=t-HLEE
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Pang i - 484 12 496
Mr. Chang REE - 486 6 492
Mr. Chen Xiao Li B/ A - 288 - 288
- 1,258 18 1,276
Non-executive director: HNTEE -
Mr. Chang Xi Min R LAE % - - %
Independent non-executive directors: BV B TEE -
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung ~~ #kE %4 % - - %
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki FERELE % - - 9%
Mr. Chan Kai Wing GRS A % - - 9%
288 - - 288
Total A&t 384 1,258 18 1,660
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST

PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group did not
include any director for the year ended 31 December
2014 (2013: three) whose emoluments are reflected in

note 11(a).

Details of the remunerations of the five highest paid
individuals (2013: remaining two) for the year are as

follows:

T )

1L%$M§&£%ﬁ%ﬁ%

(b) EREESHFMAL

F£:=8)
11(a) P Bk o

RE-F-ME+-A=+—A
LR AEEES
TR T REEAEE (ZF =
H B R W

REHMA

FR AEREREFMAL(ZF
—=F B TMR) ZFHBWT :

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Salaries, allowances and benefits e EZEREDE
in kind 319 512

Equity-settled share-based payments  LARR {72 A E (S 7R

(ARA#EH) 12,614 1,257
Defined contribution plans TEREHRETE 52 7
12,985 1,776
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST

PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals continueq)

Notes to the Financial Statements

The number of highest paid individuals whose emoluments

S5 A P

N EENEREZERSEHTMH
AT

(b) EEESHHMAL @
HMER L THEZ RSEHHA

fell within the bands is as follows: T2 AEAT ¢
No. of
highest paid individuals
BEHMA LT AR
2014 2013
—E-MF —E=F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 (approximately ZZ 1,000,00078 7T (KZ &
Nil to RMB785,500) ANR#785,5007T) - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 &L= 2,000,000 87T
(approximately RMB1,178,251 (HARE1,178,251 T
to RMB1,571,000) Z= AR¥1,571,0007T) - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T = 2,500,000 8 7T
(approximately RMB1,571,001 (¥ AR¥1,571,001 7T
to RMB1,963,750) Z= AR#¥1,963,7507T) 2 =
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T ZE 3,500,000 7T
(approximately RMB2,356,501 (¥ AR 2,356,501 7T
to RMB2,749,250) = ANR¥.2,749,2507T) 2 =
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7T 5,500,000 77T
(approximately RMB3,927,501 () AR ¥ 3,927,501 7T
to RMB4,320,250) Z= AR¥£ 4,320,250 7T) 1 —
5 2

During the year, no director or any of the highest paid
individuals waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
(2013: Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors or any of the highest paid individuals of the
Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office (2013: Nil).
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 11. EEM4 R 2 & = &b
PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) AL @

(b) EEESHHMAL @
ENSENSRERASZ HH

(b) Five highest paid individuals continueq)

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior

management were within the following bands: HISOT :
No. of
senior management
SREBEABAE
2014 2013
—E-MF —T=F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 (approximately ZZ 1,000,000 78 7T
Nil to RMB785,500) (WZTE ARHE785,5007T) 7 10
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T = 2,000,000 87T
(approximately RMB1,178,251 (¥ ANR¥1,178,251 7
to RMB1,571,000) = AR#¥1,571,0007T) 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T = 2,500,000 8 7T
(approximately RMB1,571,001 (¥ ANR¥1,571,001 7T
to RMB1,963,750) = AR 1,963,750 7T) 1 —
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T ZE 3,500,000 7C
(approximately RMB2,356,501 (¥ AR 2,356,501 7T
to RMB2,749,250) = ARK 2,749,250 7T) 2 —
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7T 5,500,000 77T
(approximately RMB3,927,501 (¥ ANR# 3,927,501 7T
to RMB4,320,250) = AR 4,300,250 7)) 1 _
12 11
China Assurance Finance Group Limited TERASHEBERAR



Notes to the Financial Statements

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

B 5 i BT i

12. fTEFBX

2014 2013
—E-lmF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Current tax — PRC BNERTTE —
— Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) — EMER ([EMSH]) 2,758 2,696

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operate.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year (2013: Nil).

EIT arising from the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2014
was calculated at 25% of the estimated assessable profits
during the year (2013: 25%).

As at 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with the PRC’s subsidiaries’ undistributed
retained earnings, amounting to approximately RMB52,728,000
(2013: RMB45,261,000). No deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised in respect of these differences because the Group is
in a position to control the dividend policies of these subsidiaries
and it is probable that such differences will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT, corporate withholding
income tax is levied on the foreign investor for the dividends
distributed out of the profits generated by the foreign investment
enterprises. No withholding income tax was recognised during
the year as there are no dividends distributed by the PRC
subsidiaries within the Group.
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w(ZF—=F:8)-

REE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HItF
- RAPBIEAZ XS IRESF
NIEFTERFEWMAZ25%E (=F
—=4F :25%) °

R_ZE—NF+=—A=+—8 W EhE
M B A RIAR 2 IRTEINZ 84 E B M A FERR
BEMBRGZ2FEREENAAR
#52 728,000 (ZE—=F : ARK
45,261,0007T) ° R A& B A E 5%
EMBARZIREBUR - BEREEEDT
SRR RARRER - WEAZS =R
RIBEERIBALE -

RERBEORMETE - HINEREE
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BREEERIMAER - HRAREZ
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to loss
before income tax at the statutory tax rate to the income tax
expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

12. FTEFHEX @

BREMER ””Ziﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’aﬁﬁﬂéﬂﬁz
ST A IR ERM R E 2 5
Fsc 2 BIRRIAT

2014 2013
—E-MmEF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Loss before income tax FriSti Al 1E (27,425) (8,416)
Tax on loss before taxation, calculated ~ $ZABRE T 75 B 82 4 (= 495% F
at the rates applicable to profits ZIBARETEN
in the tax jurisdictions concerned AR ZFE (6,856) (2,104)
Effect of different tax rates of RREM R ARE [ A8 &
subsidiaries operating ) NI E RS
in other jurisdictions NaE 2 2 1,005 510
Effect of non tax-deductible expenses G aps -7 7,975 4,027
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTIEEBB ML E 634 263
Income tax expense FTiSfiA Y 2,758 2,696

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the unused tax losses amounting to RMB3,587,000 (2013:
RMB1,053,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit

streams.

13. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

Loss attributable to owners includes a loss of RMB23,282,000
(2013: RMB5,643,000) which has been dealt with in the

financial statements of the Company.

China Assurance Finance Group Limited

AR RBETER B &% F0R - WA
FAMIEEIEARKS587,0007T (=
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13. ER ARGEE
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BEAENARE 232820007 (=F
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14.

15.

Notes to the Financial Statements

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB30,516,000 (2013: RMB11,172,000) and the weighted
average number of 1,591,644,000 (2013:1,569,132,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share are the same as basic loss per share for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: same) as the impact
of the potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding has an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic loss per share presented for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: anti-dilutive).

DIVIDEND

The board does not recommend payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).
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B 5 i BT i

BREE

ERERNBEHEDERERRFES
ANEEFE 2 BELHAR30,516,000
T(ZZE—=%F: AR¥11,172,000
70) ' AR FE B 317 1,591,644,000 i
E@ER (ZF— =4 :1,569,132,000
IR) Z ItETFI9ER -

AR EAET 2 BEH ST AREERE
—E-NFE+ZA=+—HILFEZE
BREAEBBENRBEIVE (ZT—=
FREE) HBE-T-OF+=
A=T—HLLFE  SREEERRES
BREAEE-—H(ZT—=F: %)

BRE
EFETRBRNHE-S—mF+=

B=+—BUHEEZXRERE (=ZF
— =4 )
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — GROUP

16. % - BMEKRRE —
REH

Furniture,
fixtures
and office Motor Leasehold  Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles improvements  in progress Total
fil - RER
BT  BOZRG e RENELE HEIR At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2013 RZB-—=F-f—H 3,308 1,600 4,067 4,362 59,470 72,807
Additions AE - 140 2,985 - 33,512 36,637
Transferred from deposts paid sRagfke - - - - 1952 1952
Disposals e - @) (451) - - (459)
At 31 December 2013 and R-B-=F
1 January 2014 tZA=+-BR
“Z-PE-F-A 3,308 1,732 6,601 4,362 94,934 110,937
Additions e - 53 3,130 4 1,929 5,116
Disposals HE - (31) - - - (31)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-mET=A=1-A 3,308 1,754 9,731 4,366 96,863 116,022
Accumulated depreciation: ZitHE:
At 1 January 2013 RZB-—=F-f—H 120 312 754 687 - 1,933
Charged for the year AEENR 160 516 77 289 = 1,737
Write back on disposals it E R - ] (241) = = (249)
At 31 December 2013 and RZE-=F
1 January 2014 TZAZ+-RR
“E2-TE-A-A 280 880 1,285 976 - 3421
Charged for the year KEREMR 161 534 1,511 179 - 2,385
White back on disposals it R 8 - (31) - - - (31)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-mE+-A=1-R 441 1,383 27% 1,15 - 5,75
Net carrying amount: RERE
At 31 December 2014 RZE-mETZA=+-A 2,867 n 6,03 3211 96,863 110,247
At 31 December 2013 RZF-=F+ZA=1-H 3,028 862 5,316 3,386 94,934 107,516
China Assurance Finance Group Limited TERASHEBERAR



16.

17.

Notes to the Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — GROUP
(Continued)

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s buildings in the PRC were
held under medium term leases (2013: medium). The buildings
were occupied by the Group during the year and the Group is in
the process of applying for the property certificate.

In 2013 and 2014, the Group has entered into certain
conditional agreements with certain third parties, pursuant to
which the Group has conditionally agreed to transfer or sell
certain floors and certain car parks of Building No.1 Aurora
Liaohai International Building (“Aurora Liaohai”), upon completion
of the construction. These agreements are summarised in note
31(c) to the financial statements. Total sum of these agreements
amounted to RMB 80,055,300. As the construction work has
not been completed and ownership has not yet been passed
to these parties, these properties are recorded as CIP as at
31 December 2014 while the corresponding deposits totalled
RMB 45,193,000 received are recorded as receipt in advance
(note 25) as at 31 December 2014. Management estimated that
the construction work will be completed in mid-2015 when the
buildings are ready to be occupied. The remaining portion of the
building not committed to be sold will be used as the Group’s
office premises.

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and

equipment includes an amount of RMB 2,639,568 (2013: NIL)
in respect of assets held under finance leases.

LAND USE RIGHTS — GROUP

B 5 i BT i

16. ¥ - BMEKRRE —

AEE (»

R-_ZT—NFE+—_A=+—H  £&H
MRFRBRZEFAPHRBNES (ZF
—=F:PH) ZEEFRFANHRK
SEGR AEBEFRBEHERSE -

R-E—=ZFR_T—NF  AEHHE
LRBE=ZFEINEZHEKE R B
It AEEFGEREEKLTTHKEE
ENHERBESEBKE ([JBRE
Bl —REETEERE TEEM -
ZEMER B mRRM 3Bt -
ZE Wik < 1B A A K% 80,055,300
TT o R MR - FTB M RE
BTEBRAL  ZEMER_ZT—NF
TZA=T—BERERIREARK  MA
25| 2 BERE & £ ARM45,193,000
TRZZE—NF+ZA=+—HIKERK
REARR (KMizx25) - EREME - 6
TITHER=ZZ—RFPTK - BREFE
e A o BFHBI S M AR L
& BREREE AR -

KEEWME - BELREZERAES -
BREZMERERF G AR 2,639,568
T (ZE—=F : &) 2E8E&E -

17. T {FEAE — FA&H

2014 2013

—E-lmF —ET—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARBFT

At 1 January n—H—H 36,407 37,218
Amortisation charge during the year FANEHSHE (811) 811)
At 31 December W+=-—A=+—H 35,596 36,407

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s land use rights in the PRC
were held under medium term leases (2013: medium).
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18. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 18. KB A RlfER — A H]
2014 2013
—E-MF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARBFT
Investments in subsidiaries I BARIRE
— Unlisted shares, at cost — JE LTS - AT 51,110 51,110
Amounts due from subsidiaries JrE AL BB A B FUR 169,574 133,438
Balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and B ARGEHAEERR RERIREXK
repayable on demand. B
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as R_E—NF+_A=+—HKHBARF
follows: BT
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars Principal
establishment of issued Effective activities and
and kind of and fully paid interest held by place of
Company name legal entity up share capital the Company operation
EMARL,/ KL R ERITRAR EQRER FREKR
AEEH EEERZER RAZFHE FEZER EENE
Interests held directly
EREEREE
Hero Praise Limited Incorporated in the 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% Investment
British Virgin Islands, holding in
limited liability company Hong Kong
ERARRA REBRE LR B MAL - 1REE 1 ET LRk 100% REER  BE
BREFLAA
Interests held indirectly
BEEERER
Aurora Logistics Capital Incorporated in Hong Kong, Ordinary shares of HK$200 100% Investment holding
Assurance Limited limited liability company in Hong Kong
TBRRERRERRA REBTMAL - 1B 200872 L@k 100% RERR - BE
BREARA
China Assurance Finance Group Limited FERREHEEERAT
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18. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 18. RAKMIB A Bz — AN T

(Continued) (#%&)
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars Principal
establishment of issued Effective activities and
and kind of and fully paid interest held by place of

Company name legal entity up share capital the Company operation

EMARL/ KL HR ERTRMRE ANRER TEERR

PEEL EEERZER hENvA= HEz R EEBH

Interests held indirectly

(Continued)

BEsERER (£)

Hebei Da Sheng Guaranty Incorporated in the PRC, US$13,800,000 95% Provision of financial
Company Limited a sino-foreign joint venture guarantee service,
(“Hebei Da Sheng”) performance guarantee

service and advisory
service in the PRC

A ARBITERER DA Nl al A AvAR 13,800,000 % T 9%  REDRERES
(AERBETT]) MR BERE BHERRBA

RERRSE - PE

Da Sheng (Xiamen) Guaranty Incorporated in the PRC, RMB110,000,000 97.55% Provision of financial
Company Limited a sino-foreign joint venture guarantee service,
(“Xiamen Da Sheng”) performance guarantee

service and advisory
service in the PRC

KRBT (BPFY) BRERAT] NlETE AV AR¥110,000,000 70 97.66%  RESRERRS
(TEFIRRETT]) PIRERE BHAERRENA R

BRI RA - P E

Guangzhou JunYan Enterprise Incorporated in the PRC, RMB1,000,000 97.55% Investment holding
Management Limited limited liability company in the PRC

BNTRZACREFRAA P B - AR 1,000,000 7 97.55% REZR - &

BREARA

China Assets Group Management  Incorporated in Hong Kong, Ordinary shares of HK$100 100% Investment holding
Limited limited liability company in Hong Kong

TR REEERBRAR REBTMAL - HE{E 100872 Bk 100% RERR - BE

BREFAA

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

T EER

112



Notes to the Financial Statements

A 285 i T i

18. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 18. AKMIB A Bz — A1 T

113

(Continued) (%)
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars Principal
establishment of issued Effective activities and
and kind of and fully paid interest held by place of
Company name legal entity up share capital the Company operation
EMAL B R ERTRME ANRER TEERR
NEER EERERZER [ ENvA= HEz R EEBH
Interests held indirectly
(Continued)
BEsERER (£)
China Assets Group Investment  Incorporated in Hong Kong, Ordinary shares of HK$100 100% Investment holding
Limited limited liability company in Hong Kong
mEERMEEREARAA REBTMAL - E{E100/87T.2 Bk 100% REBR - BE
BREERA
Rentop Limited Incorporated in Hong Kong, Ordinary share of HK$1 100% Investment holding
limited liability company in Hong Kong
BRERRA REBTMAL - EE1BTZ SRR 100% REER BB
BREERA

Assurance Finance Services
Limited
RREBRBEER AR

The financial statements of the subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2014 have been examined by BDO Limited for

Incorporated in Hong Kong,
limited liability company

REBTMAL -
BEREEAR

Ordinary shares of HK$10,000 100% Investment holding
in Hong Kong

EIfE 10,0008 T2 & &R 100% REER - B8

MEBARBE_T—MOF+t_-_A=1+—
BLFEZMBHRRELHBBILER

the purpose of the Group’s consolidated financial statements. XL EHEMERATMZE - MR

China Assurance Finance Group Limited
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18. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

(Continued)

Hebei Da Sheng, a 95% owned subsidiary of the Company,
has material non-controlling interesting (“NCI”). Summarised
financial information in relation to the NCI of Hebei Da Sheng,

Notes to the Financial Statements

S5 A P

before intra-group eliminations, is presented below:

18. RITB A RIER — ARAFH

(&)

X B 95% R HE 2 Y /8 X B)JA 4L
RETHAEAFERER ([ FFER
s |) - BRI REETT 2 FRER S
MM BEERE (KBRS HEA)

FIEAT -
2014 2013
—EF-nmF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
For the year ended 31 December BE+-A=1t—HLEE
Revenue Wz 16,622 13,749
Profit and total comprehensive RNEE i F R 2 EW L5
income for the year 8,329 858
Profit allocated to NCI M) FEIE AR 2 5 B B 7 416 43
Net cash inflows from operating activites & EEN 2 IR &R ERAIFEE 29,557 4,972
Net cash outflows in investing activities IR & EEZIRERE ML FEE (9,490) (7,220)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) BWER/A/ (R F58 20,067 (2,248)
2014 2013
—F-mF —F=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARET T
As at 31 December R+=HA=+—H
Current assets mBEE 118,012 79,525
Non-current assets ERENEE 87,681 89,174
Current liabilities mENAE (58,355) (29,690)
Net assets BEFE 147,338 139,009
Accumulated NCI RET IR (7,333) 6,917)
ANNUAL REPORT 2014 —E—FFR
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18. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

(Continued)

Xiamen Da Sheng, a 97.55% owned subsidiary of the Company,

has material NCIl. Summarised financial information in relation to
the NCI of Xiamen Da Sheng, before intra-group eliminations, is

presented below:

18. RIIEB A REDRE — A F
(%)
KAREEI7.55% KEZHBARE

FIRBRITHAEASFERER - ARE
FIKERTT 2 IFE T B R E

(REAEE FHAT) T

2014 2013
—F-mF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
For the year ended 31 December BZE+-A=1+—HILLEE
Revenue Weas 2,214 2,567
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive REE (B18) a8f Rk
income for the year 2EWEBEE (861) 730
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI FFEE RS 5 B A
(E18) a7 (21) 17
Net cash (outflows)/inflows from KEFEB2HENRE
operating activities (R /RAFE (50,002) 19,425
Net cash inflows/(outflows) from KEFHZHERE
investing activities A GRi) F8 61,769 (11,388)
Net cash outflows in financing activites ~ B & EE) 2 H S RE M T F5E (64) —
Net cash inflows RWEMAFHE 11,703 8,037
2014 2013
—E-mEF 2=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETTT
As at 31 December RT+=—A=+—H
Current assets MENEE 45,797 14,542
Non-current assets IEMBEE 133,549 131,768
Current liabilities MEEE (63,055) (29,553)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (396) —
Net assets BEFR 115,895 116,757
Accumulated NCI ZE IR (145) (166)
China Assurance Finance Group Limited FERREHEEERAT



19. DEPOSITS PAID — GROUP

Notes to the Financial Statements
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19. EfFEE — KEE

2014 2013
—E—MmF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥TT
Deposits paid for acquisition of G2 ES AN
properties (note) 2Ee (Fisk) 23,500 23,500
Note: FisE

RZT—TFNA - AFEEILHREEH
ERZEBRAR ([FERE]) ;IE—HHE -
LA AR # 25,260,000 T W B8 — B % - TR
DARRAZBEAT  ARAEFP—UESE
AIRDRE - REZGE  ZVESHREH
SHREEEETAER - AEED MRS
4N R ¥ 23,500,000t 2% 0 mFET
R AR5 1,760,000 LBt AREBR =
T—MOF+-_A=+—RAK=TE—=%+=A
=+—HZEAREE (HEE31(b)) °

In September 2010, the Group entered into an agreement with
AL FT R EHERBEER AR (“¥TEI") to acquire a property for
considerations of RMB25,260,000. ¥75 5 is a related party to the
Company in which #15 25’s shareholder is one of the Company’s directors.
According to the agreement, the property will be transferred to the Group
upon full settlement of the considerations. The Group had made deposits
of approximately RMB23,500,000 to #7525 and the remaining balance
of approximately RMB1,760,000 had been included in the Group’s capital
commitment (note 31(b)) as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

20. ACCOUNT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — GROUP  20. ELI%IK ﬁ%‘%’(&ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁuﬁklﬁ

2014 2013

—E—MmEF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR AREFIT
Account receivables e BE K 30,956 23,584
Less: Allowance for impairment loss AR EEERE (6,500) (6,500)
24,456 17,084
Prepayments SEUNE 0] 122 95
Deposits bigeia 1,059 1,883
Other receivables H b R U IR 38,945 24,517
64,582 43,579
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20. ACCOUNT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — GROUP

(Continued)

The Group’s account receivables represent the service fee
income receivables. For service fee income, the customers are
obliged to settle the amounts according to the payment terms
as stipulated in the contracts, with a grace period of up to 180
days. The balances as at reporting dates are interest-free and
due from a large number of diversified customers and hence
there was no significant concentration of credit risk.

The directors consider that the fair values of account receivables
which are expected to be recovered within one year are not
materially different from their carrying amounts because these
balances have short maturity periods on their inception.

Based on the agreed payment terms as stipulated in the
contracts, ageing analysis of the Group’s account receivables
(net of impairment loss) as at 31 December 2014 is as follows:

20. @H%ﬂﬁ%k&ﬁﬁﬂ@ﬂ&%ﬂlﬁ

£8 #

REE 2 FEWERRBIE RIS B AT
WA - LIRS ERWAME - BFA
RIRAWMRE < EMGERENTOR
RRAKSH/180H - AEENHREH
Hzean e RE —BHZTER

P IEEAEHEERR -

E=RA BREFSR

YNSRI

2] IR —FAKREZ BEERRZ A
FEEERAE MTEEREE -

RIES XIFTRI R 2 e R IER - A&
BR-_ZE—mE+_A=+—R2EK
BRFX (FBRRVERSIE) ZBRECDATIN T ¢

2014 2013

—E—-mE —E—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFTT

0 to 30 days 0&E30H 800 980
31 to 90 days 31E90H 910 250
91 to 180 days 91 & 180H 2,505 705
Over 180 days #8i18180 H 20,241 15,149
24,456 17,084

Ageing analysis of the Group’s account receivables that were

REBARIRIEZ FEURRR Z RRER D AT 10

not impaired is as follows: I
2014 2013
—F-IF s
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AER¥TT
Neither past due nor impaired R HA R ARRE 10,606 360
1 to 90 days past due #HI1 =90 H 2,110 870
91 to 180 days past due wHI91 =180 H 2,425 705
Over 180 days past due B HAEBR® 180 B 9,315 15,149
24,456 17,084
China Assurance Finance Group Limited FERREHEEERAT
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20. ACCOUNT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — GROUP

(Continued)

Account receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to customers that have good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are considered fully recoverable.

The other classes within account and other receivables do not
contain impaired assets.

The below table reconciled the impairment loss of account
receivables for the year:

S5 A P

20. @H%ﬂﬁ%’(&ﬁﬂﬂ@ﬂ&%klﬁ

£8 =

BRI BB R E 2 FEU RIS AN AR S
BERIFEEERLHZTFER - 1R
BEEER  ANEEERUERLE
2F)  AESRRE AR 2EKDE -
WEERARELERZEEREHER
HEREHE o

R W B 35K e EL A FE MR 2 B A 3B R I
BREREEE -

NRESFE AR Z B EEBY
B -

2014 2013

—F-mF ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
At 1 January n—AH—H 6,500 —
Impairment loss recognised EHERBEEE - 6,500
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8” 6,500 6,500

The Group recognised impairment loss based on the accounting
policy stated in note 5.6.
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20.

21.

ACCOUNT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — GROUP

(Continued)

The Group holds collaterals over all its account receivables. In
the event of default or failure to repay any outstanding guarantee
amounts by the customers, the Group will proceed with sale of
collaterals. In order to maintain the credit risk at desirable level,
the Group’s average loan-to-value ratio was kept below 50% to
ensure the recoverability of the outstanding guarantee amount

20. PR BRAK I HL i IR UL SR IR

£8 #

REE 2 A ERUSR KT E E IR o
WEFEHIARBEEREMARENER
B AKESHEERD  RERIE
BEERRKY  AEEZFHER
16 S E L RAEF 50% LA T AREGR R
BNEREZAIWENYE (ZT—=%F:

(2013: 50%). At the reporting date, the fair value of the pledged 50%) - NG BH - BEAEUERK 2
assets in respect of account receivables is as follows: BEEREEZAFERAT :

2014 2013

—E-OF e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENERE 1,496,357 502,635
Inventories ER =y 794,787 307,376
Account receivables JEUER TR 174,060 27,719
Bank deposits (note 23) RITER (F15E23) 1,250 1,500
2,466,454 839,230

Certain aforementioned collaterals were also pledged to the
Group to secure the Group’s exposure under unexpired financial
guarantee contracts (note 34) as at the reporting date.

ENTRUSTED LOAN RECEIVABLES — GROUP

On 16 January 2014, Da Sheng Xiamen entered into an
entrusted loan agreement (the “Entrusted Loan Agreement”)
with China Merchants Bank, pursuant to which Da Sheng
Xiamen, through China Merchants Bank, provided a one-year
entrusted loan of RMB18,000,000 to independent third parties.
This entrusted loans have an effective interest rate of 7.2% per
annum, is due in January 2015. The balance has been repaid to
the Group at the loan expiry day.

China Assurance Finance Group Limited
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AET HRERR DR T AEE - A
AEERHRE A H#Z REIHRE ER
BRREIER (PIEE34) ©

BRZREER — AKH

R-ZF—F—A+/ A - BEFIRETT
ERARITAILZEESR WE ([R5
Exipagl) - REZFEER W= @ EFI
REATEBHERBRITA—BILE=T71E
H—FHEZFEE KA K 18,000,000
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PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS — GROUP 2 EEHRBITER — XK
These have maturities of one year as at 31 December 2014 RZZFE—MOF+_A=+—RH%5E
(2013: one year). Such deposits are pledged to certain banks ERRITHERZIBREAE—F (=%
as securities for providing financial guarantee services to the —=F: —F) ZEFREHERTE
customers. The effective interest rates of the Group’s pledged FIR1T - IERREBPIRHEE BERIRTE
bank deposits as at 31 December 2014 ranged from 0.33% to ZIREBE R _E—WNF+A=1T—
3.3% (2013: 0.35% to 3.5%) per annum. B AEEEERBEITHERZERFE
ASF033EEIIE(ZT—=%F:
0.35/EE35E) °
As at 31 December 2014, all pledged deposits were RZZ—WE+=ZA=+—8H " B
denominated in RMB (2013: all). RMB is not freely convertible EHRERUARKHE (ZTE—=F:
into other currencies and the remittance of funds out of the FiB) e  ARERAERERAEME
PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC ¥ ghEELZEES AT HEN
government. B e 2 FNE PR | P AR PR o
RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS — GROUP 23. ZRFBIW|ITFR — &&F
These bank deposits are kept in the PRC bank accounts of ZERITFR DTS ERFE 2
the Group as collaterals of financial guarantees (note 34) and RITIRPIEARERER 2 ER G (M
related account receivables (note 20). As these bank deposits 34) KR EWER SR (F15E20) - B
are restricted to the use by the Group, they are not under the ZERITERIIREIHAEEFR - i
cash management of the Group. TEBAEEZHEEE -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — GROUP 2. e RIREEEEB —
REE
2014 2013
—E—MF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT ARBTF T
Cash in hand and bank balances FFIRE MIBITES 42,885 9,332

Included in the balance of approximately RMB2,350,000 as at
31 December 2014 (2013: RMB567,000) was denominated
in HK$. All other balances were denominated in RMB and
were kept in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject
to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government.
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — GROUP 24. B4 R E S ZEIEHR

(Continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on the
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

25. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
DEFERRED INCOME — GROUP

25. J?E*—rﬁﬁ

AEE (»

RITER N BT E I AR
ZRBFRER - RITFEREFEALS
I EHER BRI IR 2 (E MR AFIRTT

Hit A
LA — 2IK$

2014 2013
—E-F —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT

Accruals and other payables FEETE A R E AL MBS 5B
(note 1) (FfE1) 39,238 40,751
Deposits received BliRE 1 103
Receipt in advance (note 2) TEWRIE (FiFE2) 45,193 3,000
Deferred income from financial guarantee 2k B B {R Z IEIEUR A 10,692 7,425
Business and other tax payables AR R EMFIE 798 965
95,922 52,244

Note 1:

The balance as at 31 December 2014 included accrued construction cost
of RMB14,920,000 (2013: RMB23,134,000). This amount was accrued
based on the relevant agreements and with a reference to the stage of
completion in the process of construction. An amount of RMB8,214,000
(2013: Nil) was paid during the year and this was recorded as a part of cash
outflow in purchase of property, plant and equipment in the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

Note 2:

During the year, the Group entered into several agreements with purchasers,
pursuant to which the Group has conditionally agreed to sell and the
purchasers have conditionally agreed to purchase certain floors of Aurora
Liaohai. The balance as at 31 December 2014 represented the amount
received from these purchasers during the year. Please refer to note 31(c)
for details.

China Assurance Finance Group Limited

e

R-ZT—NE+-A=+—BZE&HBERET
WA AR A R#14,920,0007C (Z B — =4 :
AR¥23,134,0007T) © & 28 TYIZRER R
BELE  WREHTBEREITHER - ARE
8,214,000 (ZT—=%F : &) S EENFR
St WA RS RERANIIAREWE -
BWEREERSRL 2 —55

fizE2

FRN - AEBBEZEEFITLEZOHE &
b AEEERFEHERBEFEKHERER
EBBESETEE - RZ_T—MNF+=A
S+ —RAZEBREFARZEETREIZK
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26. OTHER BORROWINGS

S5 A P

26. EtEE

Group Company
A 279
2014 2013 2014 2013
“Z-mNFE —T-=F C—Z-mNF —T-=
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREFT ARBT R ARETT
Loan A (note 1) BEFXAFA) 23,738 23,639 - -
Loan B (note 2) BB (HizE2) 15,855 - 15,855 —
Loan C (note 3) EHRC(HizE3) 6,300 - 6,300 -
45,893 23,639 22,155 —
Notes: B 3T
(1) The balance represented an unsecured short-term loan from an (1) HEBRRTREBBUFE= 2EEREH
independent third party of approximately RMB 23.8 million (equivalent B # AR 23,800,000 7T (FEE R4
to approximately HK$30 million), which is guaranteed by Mr. Pang, a 30,000,000/ 7T) - HARBEZEEFZ L
director of the Company, interest-bearing at a rate of 15% per annum EER BEBF15%TE AR =ZF
and repayable on 24 June 2015. The loan contains clauses which —HFERNAZTNBERE - ZEERT
give the lender the right at its sole discretion to demand immediate BIER  EHRRAEEBITRBERR
payment; &K
(2)  The balance represented an unsecured short-term loan from an (2 HEHBRTRREBIUE=H 2 EIEIFEH
independent third party of approximately RMB 15.9 million (equivalent B # AR 15,900,000 7T (AEE R4
to approximately to HK$20 million), which is guaranteed by Mr Pang, 20,000,000/ 7T) - HARBEEFZ L
a director of the Company, interest-bearing at a rate of 3% - 4% per ERR - REBA3%E4%ETE  ARE
month and repayable on demand; and KEFER &
(3)  The balance represented an unsecured short-term loan from an Q) #HBHRRKABYEZHZERBES

independent third party of approximately RMB 6.3 million (equivalent
to approximately to HK$8 million), which is guaranteed by Mr. Pang, a
director of the Company, interest-bearing at a rate of 2.5% per month
and repayable on 24 March 2015. The loan contains clauses which
give the lender the right at its sole discretion to demand immediate
payment.
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27. FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES — GROUP

(@)

Total minimum lease payments are as follows:

27. MEHESE — AKH

(@) RIEHEENREREAT :

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Due within one year —FREH 739 —
Due in the second to fifth years FE-ERFALIE 1,714 —
2,453 —
Future finance charges on BEMEZ
finance leases RIRE 75 & A (248) —
Present value of finance BREHESERE
lease liabilities 2,205 —
The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows: b) BMEMEHEREWT :
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARETFTT
Due within one year, included under R—FRZ|H] -
current liabilities FFARBIAE 611 —
Due in the second to fifth years, REZ_ERFREE -
included under non-current FFASEREAE
liabilities 1,594 —
2,205 —

The Group has entered into certain finance leases for its
motor vehicles with remaining lease terms of two to five
years. Interest rates under the leases are fixed at rates
ranging between 4.28% and 13% per annum. These
leases does not have options to renew or any contingent
rental provisions. Under the lease terms, the Group has
the option to purchase the leased assets at a price that is
expected to be sufficiently lower than the fair value of the
leased asset at the end of the leases.

Finance lease liabilities are secured by the underlying
assets where the lessor has the rights to revert in event of
default. The carrying amounts of the finance lease liabilities
are denominated in RMB and approximate to their fair
values.

China Assurance Finance Group Limited

AEBETER LA THTHE
MR-ERFRENE - %5
ME 2 FHREE RN T 428
E1RENTF - RFHNLEEH]
EERSE AR SIR - 1R
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. iR A<
Number of
shares Amount
RHEE Xl
Notes ‘000 HK$’000 RMB’000
BdsE & FAT ARETT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of FRREEAR0.01 8T
HK$0.01each
At 1 January 2013, R-ZE—=F—H—8 -
31 December 2013, —T—=F
1 January 2014 and +=-A=+—8"
31 December 2014 —T—mWFE—H—H
hZ=—Z—MF
+=-—A=+—H 5,000,000 50,000 40,640
Issued and fully paid: ERTRBHEZ
Ordinary shares of AR EBA%0.01 87T
HK$0.01each
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=F
—H—H 1,543,000 15,430 12,539
Issue of ordinary shares TR R A RS
upon exercise of BT LB
share options 30 42,400 424 368
At 31 December 2013 R-T—=%F
and at 1 January 2014 +—A=+—RHEK
—EF—NFE—H— 1,585,400 15,854 12,907
Issue of ordinary shares RITIE A S
upon exercise of BT E B
share options 30 22,600 226 177
At 31 December 2014 R_T—MEF
+—-—A=+—H 1,608,000 16,080 13,084
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29. RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY

(@)

(b)

29. fAfE — AKBRAAT

Group (a) &A&KHE
Details of movements on the Group’s reserve are as set REERBEDFBHNIGEE
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. mEFEEK o
Company (b) AT
Contributed Share Share
surplus premium Exchange option  Accumulated
(note ¢) (note d) reserve reserve losses Total
B4R Rt E
(Wzkc) (Wzkd) Eifie BRERRE 2R &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETT ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
At1 January 2013 R=F-=%-f-H 51,110 129,817 - 11,340 (25,864) 166,403
Equity-settled share options R RE LS E
granted (note 30() (ka0 () - - - 2515 - 2515
Exercise of share option (note 30~ #7(E&TR#E (F3£30) = 23611 = (3.271) = 20,340
Lapse of share option (note 30) R (FH3E30) - = = (31) 31 -
Transaction with owners HEBAETIRS = 23,611 = (787) 31 22,855
Loss for the year FEFR - - - - (5,643) (5,643)
Other comprehensive income FEEtZENG
for the year = = 244 = - 244
Total comprehensive income ERrAbELE
for the year - - 244 - (5,643) (5,399)
At 31 December 2013 and E@:;?—EH:H =1-A
1 January 2014 Z-IE-f—H 51,110 153,428 244 10,553 (31,476) 183,859
Eauity-settled share options granted T“MA xT’é?ﬁﬁ ke
(note 30 (P 30(in) - - - 17,001 - 17,001
Exercise of share option (note 30) 78812 (R5£30) - 14,132 - (2.218) - 11914
Transaction with owners HERNETIRS - 14,132 - 14,783 - 28,915
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (23,282) (23,262)
Other comprehensive incomefor ~ A2 ENE
the year - - 60 - - 60
Total comprehensive income for R ENREE
the year - - 60 - (23,282) (23,222)
At 31 December 2014 RoB-ME+-ATH-R O BLM0 167560 304 25,3% (G475 189,552
TERREBEEEGRAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)

(C) Contributed surplus represents the difference between
the net asset values of the subsidiaries acquired and the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange thereof pursuant to the restructuring exercise.

(d) Share premium of the Company represents the excess

of the proceeds received over the nominal value of the

Company’s shares issued.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 1 December 2011 for the purpose of
providing incentive or rewards to any full-time or part-time
employee of the Company or any member of the Group, or
any other eligible persons (the “Eligible Persons”) for their
contribution to the Group.

As at 1 January 2013, the Company had already granted an
aggregate of 150,000,000 share options at an exercise price of
HK$0.63 per share to the Eligible Persons, which entitled them
to subscribe for an aggregate of 150,000,000 new ordinary
shares.

On 21 May 2013, the Company granted an aggregate of
8,000,000 share options at an exercise price of HK$1.19 per
share to the Eligible Persons, which entitled them to subscribe
for an aggregate of 8,000,000 new ordinary shares.

On 20 November 2013, the Company granted an aggregate of
47,000,000 share options at an exercise price of HK$1.63 per
share to the Eligible Persons, which entitled them to subscribe
for an aggregate of 47,000,000 new ordinary shares. The
vesting conditions in relation to the approval for the application
of national third party payment and settlement license on these
share options have been partially fulfilled in 2014.
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W — AEERALQH
(4)
(c) EaABEAMUBEHBAR A
EFEERREERBITERR
2 ARFIRA L EEZ 2 -

ARRLZ Bt s (B T5 36 P S 508
RARRERTTROEEZE
ﬁ% o

RGO RHEENR (UK
mE)

nE

(d)

ARABR—_F——F+_A—RERAE
Pt & ([BAERTE]) - UBLAR
Al AR B RIK B AR 2 A2 REk
RBEESRTMEMAERAL (S
BRALD) HAKEMEERRLE
Pt

HE-_ZT—=F—A—H8 ARQFEK
IEEER063BTMAEERALE
& #£ 150,000,000 17 BE A% & - WK F
18 & 1) R B8 4 #£ 150,000,000 & 37 %
AR o

R-F—=FRAA=+—8 ' ARQF)Z
IEEFR119BTRAEERALE
& ££8,000,00017 B AR # - W BE T 1%
ZLREFIFREE A ££8,000,0000% & @A ©

N-T—=F+—A=+A8  KRRK
TEEFR1.63BTAEERALE
& $£47,000,000 15 B A - AR T 1%
ZREF R A 47,000,000 % 37 E 3B
R BERHZEEREFARELE
ME=F I REERBED Z BBK
% HRZZE—NFHDEK °
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(Continued)

On 10 July 2014, the Company granted an aggregate of
15,000,000 share options at an exercise price of HK$1.50 per
share to the Eligible Persons, which entitled them to subscribe
for an aggregate of 15,000,000 new ordinary shares. The
vesting conditions in relation to the approval for the application
of national third party payment and settlement license on these
share options have also been fulfiled in 2014.

On 10 July 2014, the Company also granted another
10,000,000 share options at an exercise price of HK$1.50 per
share to the Eligible Persons, which entitled them to subscribe
for an aggregate of 10,000,000 new ordinary shares. As the
vesting condition in relation to the completion of the potential
investment in Beijing Jin Dian Pai Information Technology
Limited has not yet been fulfilled at the end of the reporting
date, no equity-settled share-based payment for these
10,000,000 share options was charged to profit or loss during
the year.

[t is estimated that the fair value of the 150,000,000 share
options, 8,000,000 share options, 47,000,000 share options
and 25,000,000 share options granted by the Company were
approximately HK$14.26 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB11.57 million), HK$3.16 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB2.52 million), HK$25.4 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB19.95million) and HK$4.32 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB3.39 million) respectively, which were one-
off and non-cash expense in nature. For further information
in relation to the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the
Company’s prospectus dated 29 December 2011.

China Assurance Finance Group Limited

30. L;LHgﬁé%Ei.ﬁ-ﬁ%k (AR

KEH) #)

RZZE—WF+A+H  ARFREEAE
$£15,000,0007 AR ETEER AL
TEEASR1E0ETT By HEE
#3388 & $£ 15,000,000 B #7 & @A ©
ZEBEREEHAREEBRME= A2
MBS EELS  BBIFHFER =S
—PUFEM o

RZTE—MFELA+H  ARBIMRH
10,000,00017 Bk 1 T & B AL 17
FEAFR150ETT BT HEEF
2884 10,000,000 B & @M - B
RZEBRESENIt RS AEBRK
MBRAR 2 BEIRE 2 HBIFHRA
EBHIHAREMNK © #5% 10,000,000
D IEARIE 2 AR 10 B E A SR (AR AR A
H)HMARRNEE 2 BRP I -

AN B HE 2 150,000,000 17 BE AN #E
8,000,000 17 & A% # - 47,000,000 17 &
A% 4 % 25,000,000 17 8 B 4 2 fh st 2
EDBIH A 14,260,00087T (SR
#4 A K #11,570,0007%) * 3,160,000
Bt (EERLOARM2,520,0007T)
25,400,000 T (M ER O AR
19,950,0007T) K 4,320,000/ 7T ( 48
LR AR¥3,390,0007T) ' B— X
MRIERSME - FRABRER S ZE
—SER - B2EARRBAHAEZT
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 30. LA B EE 2k (LLER

(Continued)

Details of share options granted or outstanding

Particulars and movements of the outstanding share options
granted under the Scheme for the year ended 31 December
2014 were as follows:

REHE) )

E R e RITEZBR
S

e B T AT S O RS —
—mE+=A=+—HILEET#ER
BEHWT :

2014 Price of
Number of share options shares
Z§-pf
EREYE RE
Balance Exercisable  Exercise
Name and Balance Granted Exercise Lapsed Cancelled asat Date of periods of price
category of asat during during during during 31 December grant of share  per share
participant 1 January 2014 the year the year the year the year 2014 share option options option
H=%-m%
H-%8-m% t2p=t-8 EhE
SEAZHEREAR -f-Bef%  AEEERM  AEERAR  A¥EBRM  ASECHE 268 RRERLAY BREZTRE SROEE
(note 28) HKS
(Hikos) A
Director
£
Mr. Chen Xiao Li 16,400,000 - - - - 15,400,000 23 March 2012 23 March 2012 063
1022 March 2015
RII%E ZE-ZFSACER E-CFSACfERE
“5-9%=fA-f-A
Consultants 70,000,000 - 4,000,000) - - 66,000,000 23 March 2012 23 March 2012 063
ER 1022 March 2015
St gy = e Sty )
“E-1f=A-1-R
4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000 21 May 2013 1May 2014 1.19
030 April 2016
Z5-=ERA=1-R “3-BERA-AZ
ZE-EmA=TR
10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000 20 November 2013 1 November 2014 to 163
31 October 2016
“ECEP-ACTE CERET-A-BE
ZE-FtA=1-H
Sub-total 84,000,000 - 4,000,000) - - 80,000,000
5§
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 30. LA B EE 2k (LLER
(Continued) REHE) =)

Details of share options granted or outstanding EREHMERITEZER
(Continued) REHE @
2014 Price of
Number of share options shares
ZE3-Rf
EREHA BE
Balance Exercisable  Exercise
Name and Balance Granted Exercise Lapsed Cancelled asat Date of periods of price
category of asat during during during during 31 December grant of share  per share
participant 1 January 2014 the year the year the year the year 2014 share option options option
H=%-1%
R-%-1E t=A=t+-8 i
SEAZRERER -f-BzE%  AEECRE  AEBEAR  AEEEAN  AFECHH pi BRERHAY BREZGRSE SRORE
(note 28) HKS
(Hista8) AT
Employees 18,000,000 - (16,200,000 - - 1,800,000 23 March 2012 23 March 2012 063
&8 022 March 2015
TE-—ESASSH ZF-CESACtERR
ZI-RE-fzT8
400,000 - (200,000 - - 200,000 23 March 2012 Ty 2014 063
106 July 2015

i S “5-RELALAZ
“E-RELARA

400,000 - (200,000) - - 200,000 23 March 2012 1 August 2014 063
to 31 August 2015
S S “3-RENA-AZ
“E-RENA=T-R

4,000,000 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 21 May 2013 1 May 2014 119
1030 April 2016
ZE-SERA-T-R “5-RERA-AZ
“E2-ERA=1R

37,000,000 - - - - 37,000,000 20 November 2013 1 November 2014 163
to 31 October 2016
ZF-ZFP-f-fR  ZE-RET-A-BE

ZEETA=T8
- 16,000,000 - - - 15,000,000 10 July 2014 10 July 2014 1.50
(note fi 109 July 2015
(Kiskii) “E-MELATR “3-MELATRE
Z3-15tANA
10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000 10July 2014 10 July 2014 150
(note i) 109 July 2015
(GiE) subject to condtions
fuffled
“E2-MELATR “3-MEEATAE
“T-RELANA
(BRfEn)
Sub-total 59,800,000 25,000,000 (18,600,000 - - 66,200,000
I
Total 159,200,000 25,000,000 22,600,000 - - 161,600,000
5]
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(Continued)

Details of share options granted or outstanding

(Continued)

Particulars and movements of the outstanding share options
granted under the Scheme for the year ended 31 December

30. AR B EEMARK (UK

REH)

(&)

ERHMERTEZER
RHE @

R BIET R T EOBRIER =
—=F+A=+—AILEEZH#ER

2013 were as follows: FEHNT :
2013 Price of
Number of share options shares
Z§-zf
EREYE RE
Balance Exercisable  Exercise
Name and Balance Granted Exercise Lapsed Cancelled asat Date of periods of price
category of asat during during during during 31 December grant of share  per share
participant 1 January 2013 the year the year the year the year 2013 share option options option
R-g-z£
H-8-z% tZA=1-A EhE
SEAZHEREAR -f-Bef%  AEEERM  AEERAR  A¥EBRM  ASECHE 268 RRERLAY BREZTRE SROEE
(note 28) HKS
(Hikos) A
Director
£
Mr. Chen Xiao Li 16,400,000 - - - - 15,400,000 23 March 2012 23 March 2012 063
t0 22 March 2015
RII%E i S 2 oyl Wy =
“F-1%=fA-1-A
Consultants 77,000,000 - (7,000,000) - - 70,000,000 23 March 2012 23 March 2012 063
ER 1022 March 2015
S = e Sy - )
ZE-RF=Rz1CH
- 4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000 21 May 2013 1May 2014 119
(note ) 10 30 April 2016
(hi3k) “E-ZERA-t-B -R-MERA-RE
ZE-NERA=TR
- 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000 20 November 2013 1 November 2014 163
(note ) to 31 October 2016
(Wiski) “E-Et-fotR CE-MEH-A-RE
ZE-FtA=1-H
Sub-total 77,000,000 14,000,000 (7,000,000) - - 84,000,000
5y
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 30. AR S EENZ (LI
(Continued) REHE) )

ERHMERITEZBR

Details of share options granted or outstanding

(Continued) EFE @
2013 Price of
Number of share options shares
ZE-ZF
RlEHA RE
Balance Exercisable  Exercise
Name and Balance Granted Exercise Lapsed Cancelled asat Date of periods of price
category of asat during during during during 31 December grant of share  per share
participant 1 January 2013 the year the year the year the year 2013 share option options option
H-g-z%
Ho%-zF tZAz1-8 ]
SEAZNERER -f-Bz8%  AEECRE  AEEEAR  AEEEAN  AEECHH pis BRERLEH BRE2GRE SRORE
(note 28 HKS
(Kist2s) AT
Employees 53,400,000 - (35,400,000) - - 18,000,000 23 March 2012 23 March 2012 063
| 1022 March 2015
ZE-—EZA-ZR —F-FZACtZAR
E-REACTCA
600,000 - - 200,000) - 400,000 23 March 2012 7y 2012 063
t06July 2015
ZE-ZFSRCTER ZE-CEtAtRE
2-BELAAA
600,000 - - 200,000) - 400,000 23 March 2012 1 August 2012 063
to 31 August 2015
ZE-ZF=f21=H “2-CEN\R-RE
“F-1%)\A=1-H
- 4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000 21 May 2013 1May 2014 119
(note ) 1030 Aprl 2016
(hist) “E-SERR-T-R CE-MERR-RE
5 \5MA=TH
- 37,000,000 - - - 37,000,000 20 November 1 November 2014 163
(note ) 2013 t0 31 October 2016
iE:d) E-CET-AotR CE-MET-A-RE
i Iv
Sub-otal 54,600,000 41,000,000 (35,400,000) (400,000) - 59,800,000
it
Total 147,000,000 55,000,000 (42,400,000 (400,000) - 159,200,000
a3t
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) On 21 May 2013, the Company granted an aggregate of 8,000,000
share options at an exercise price of HK$1.19 per share of the
Company to the eligible persons. The market price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant was HK$1.19 per share. Each of the
grantees paid HK$1 to the Company on acceptance of the offer
of share option. There is no vesting condition or vesting period
on the options granted. Equity-settled share-based payment of
approximately RMB2,515,000 has been charged to profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2013 in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy set out in note 5.13. The fair value for these share
options was determined by LCH(Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited
(*LCH”), a firm of independent valuers with certain key inputs as
described below:

B 5 i BT i

30. LR AEENE (AR
REH) )

GEE

@

RZBE—=FRAA=-+—08  XxQFMA
BERATBELTEEASRAAR
1& 5 1.19% 7T 2 48 51 8,000,000 17 & A%
e RELBH AARKRHZME
BERIA9B T SEBRALEAE
FTHEREZzZZRAAAR T 15T
ZARME o B 7 B AR N A BT R AR K
BEH o RN AEEMNR (IRAL
H) H AR 2,515,000 B 1R & M 5
513FTH 2 AEB e BRIABES
T—=F+-_A=+—RAIFEIBH
BR - X EERE 2 AT ERBHER
METREMARRAR ([FIBEIT)) &
E B TEZHABIERIN TR -

Batch 1 Batch 2

E—#t -t ¢
Grant date A 21 May 2013

—E—=FRA=-+—H
Option pricing model used FrRERETEEERN Binomial option pricing model
ZIEAIREE ER

Weighted average exercise price IEFIITEE HK$1.19 3 7T
Annualized volatility FEIRIBE 58% 56%
Risk-free interest rate Eadrlrepd 0.18% 0.24%
Indicated option value (HK$/option) BRI EE (B IEARAE) 4,000,000 4,000,000
Expected life of the option BB AR R) TR EAF A 1.94 years &£ 2.95 years

The annualised volatility is based on the historical volatility of the
Company’s share price and by reference to other similar industry
as listed in the PRC, adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information. The expected life
used in the model has been adjusted based on management’s best
estimate.
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(ii) On 20 November 2013, the Company granted an aggregate of
47,000,000 share options at an exercise price of HK$1.63 per share
of the Company to the eligible persons. The market price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant was HK$1.62 per share. Half
of the share options are exercisable from 1 November 2014 and 31
October 2015 and the other half of the share options are exercisable
from 1 November 2015 to 31 October 2016. Each of the Grantees
has paid HK$1 to the Company on acceptance of the offer of share
option. There is a vesting condition on the 47,000,000 share options
granted which has been partially fulfilled in 2014. Equity-settled
share-based payment of approximately RMB14,990,000 has been
charged to profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2014 in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy set out in note 5.13.
The fair value for these share options was determined by LCH, with
certain key inputs as described below.

30. LXHgﬁé%Eif’Eﬁ%k (AR

REH)

(%)

BieE : ()

(i

R-ZZ—=F+—A=+8 " A2FRA
EERBATBREITEEASRARR
% 13 1.637%8 7T 2 48 5T 47,000,000 17 &
BefE - MIREBE - AQRIRH ZHE
BER1.628TT ¥ EBREATR =
T—NFE+—A—HE-_ZT—RHFT+A
=+—BHBEARITE - B —FEREA
AR-E—AF+—A—HEZ-T—X
F+A=+—BHBERTE - FEBEA
EEMNRTEREZ ZZRAARRX
AT ZRE - B H 2 47,000,000 B
BRESERBGY  HRZZT—ImF
B DIER o AR BEEM TR (AR
KREEH) 4 AR 14,990,000 7T E 1R 1
MizE5.13 Frak « AN B & 5T BURET AR
E-ET—NFE+-_A=+—HILFEE
ik o REEIRIE L AT EBFBITE
E B TEEEAZRIN TR -

Batch 1 Batch 2
£t £t

Grant date A

Option pricing model used Fr R E B R

Weighted average exercise price IEFIIITEE

Annualized volatility FREKEE

Risk-free interest rate 1 BB 1| 2

Indicated option value (HK$/option) BRI EE (B IEARAE)
Expected life of the option RNk TEERSF ER

The annualised volatility is based on the historical volatility of the
Company’s share price and by reference to other similar industry
as listed in the PRC, adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information. The expected life
used in the model has been adjusted based on management’s best
estimate.
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—Z-—=F+—A=-+H
Binomial option pricing model
TIHEEFEERRN
HK$1.63 77T
62% 60%
0.26% 0.39%
23,500,000 23,500,000
1.95 year 2.95 year
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 30. AR S EEZ (LI
XEHE) )

BieE : (&)

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)~ On 10 July 2014, the Company granted an aggregate of 25,000,000
share options at an exercise price of HK$1.50 per share of the
Company to the eligible persons. The market price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant was HK$1.50 per share. The share
options are exercisable from 10 July 2014 to 9 July 2015 with
condition. Each of the grantees paid HK$1 to the Company on
acceptance of the offer of share option. As the vesting conditions of
the 15,000,000 share options, out of the 25,000,000 share options
have already been fulfilled in 2014, equity-settled share-based
payment of approximately RMB2,011,000 has been charged to profit
or loss during the year. No equity-settled share-based payment has
been charged to profit or loss for those remaining 10,000,000 share
options as the vesting conditions have not yet been fulfilled. The
fair value for these share options was also determined by LCH, with
certain key inputs as described below:

)

R-ZZ-—OFLA+H ARFAAEE
A T8 AR EE 25,000,000
BRESREE10BTZITEE -
AARBEOHRBEHEAZMELSEK
1.5087 - BEEAIR T —NELA
TRE-Z-RAFEANBHERETE
W BTG - BERAEERNRT
BREZEZERARQAM1ETZ
HAB - B 7025,000,00017 B R #EH H
15,000,000 17 Z B @ R IFE R =T — M
FEK - B REENR(ABRAKEE)
HARE2,011,000tERAFEZE
=P S ° # 10,000,000 13 BB 2
Bt MEEN R ARAER) AN A
mPXH  AREEBGIHRERX -
ZEBBREZ A FEBNEITEE - X

T ABURFF AT ¢

Batch 1 Batch 2
E—#t -t ¢

Grant date A 10 July 2014

—E—MFELA+H
Option pricing model used FrRERETEEERN Binomial option pricing model
ZIEAIREE ER

Weighted average exercise price IEFIITEE HK$1.507% 7T
Annualized volatility FEIRIBE 38% 38%
Risk-free interest rate Eadrlrepd 0.11% 0.11%
Indicated option value (HK$/option) BRI EE (B IEARAE) 15,000,000 10,000,000
Expected life of the option B TERA T 1 year 1 year

The annualised volatility is based on the historical volatility of the
Company’s share price and by reference to other similar industry as
listed in the PRC, adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility
based on publicly available information. The expected life used in the
model has been adjusted based on management’s best estimate.
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 30. AR S EENZ (LI
(Continued) REHE) =)

Notes: (Continued) Wt - (&)
(v)  Equity-settled share-based payment expenses comprise: v) ARG REEMR (ABRANEE) Z2FH
B
2014 2013
—ZE—MEF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETFTT
Equity-settled schemes to employees m{E B R 2 A E 2 13,384 1,257
Equity-settled schemes to eligible persons E{EE REEIUINz A BB AT
other than employees and directors RIEAREEE T E 3,617 1,258
17,001 2,515
For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, certain share HE-_Z—NFrR-_F—=F+=-A
options were granted to the consultants in light of their contribution =t+—BIFE  ETEREDRTE
and services to the Group. The Group measured the fair value of - URIGMMAEREEEL 2B/ R
services received from the consultants with reference to the fair value R RS - AR EEERAERRIE
of those provided by eligible employees as management considers BATRMEZIRFEEE EAU - ARE
that the services provided by the consultants and employees are BE2ERTAREREECERENLTE
similar in nature. EmsrE2EERENRE 2 AFE -
(v Share options outstanding and weighted average exercise prices V)  FARKRITEZ BRERMETFIITE
during the year are as follows: (EE2 7NN
2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=F
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number exercise price Number  exercise price
hnEFY g
B T1EE Eg= 115 E
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding at 1 January R—RA—B#EKRITE 159,200,000 0.95 147,000,000 0.63
Granted during the year AEEERDY 25,000,000 1.50 55,000,000 1.57
Exercised during the year AEEBITHE (22,600,000) 0.68  (42,400,000) 0.63
Lapsed during the year AEFBE KRR - - (400,000) 0.63
Outstanding at 31 December w+=-—A=+—8
mARTTEE 161,600,000 1.08 159,200,000 0.95
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options FRITEBEREZ B 2 METHARER
exercised during the year was HK$1.20 (2013: HK$1.17). 1208 T (ZE—=F :1.17%T) °
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

)

(vi)

(Continued)

Out of the total number of share options outstanding as at 31
December 2014, 128,100,000 (2013: 112,200,000) had been vested
and were exercisable at the end of the year.

The exercise price of options outstanding at the end of the year
ranged between HK$0.63 and HK$1.63 (2013: HK$1.63) and their
weighted average remaining contractual life was 9 months (2013: 21
months).

31. COMMITMENT — GROUP AND COMPANY

(a) Operating lease commitments

Future minimum rental payable under non-cancellable
operating lease of the Group in respect of buildings with
related parties (note 32(a)) and independent third parties
as at 31 December 2014 are as follows:

S5 A P

30. AR BEESER (LUK
REE) =

BiRE « ()

)

(vi)

(%)

R-ZT—WFE+=A=+—AHERITHE
Z B HE M S P - 128,100,00015 (=
T — =4 :112,200,00010) B EE
BB ATAFERITHE -

RER BMRITEZEREITFEER
063 TTE1BIB L (ZTE—=F:
1.63%7T) + Mgk T 2 METFHERNF
HEIEA (ZE—=F:21@A8) -

3. EE —FAEERAEALQT
(a) KEHEFKIE

R-E-MFE+—A=+—H 1§
IEAREEEEET (HiE32e) &
BYFE=T 2 T RIS HER
BT 2 RARSEERNERIT

Group
rEE
2014 2013
- —EF=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR¥TT
Within one year —F 2R 943 2,350
Within two to five years “ERF 3 857
946 3,207

The Group leases certain properties under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to
three years, with options to renew the lease terms at the
expiry dates or at days as mutually agreed between the
Group and the respective landlords. None of these leases
includes any contingent rentals.

The Company did not have operating lease commitments
as at 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).
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31. COMMITMENT — GROUP AND COMPANY 31. &if — REBERALQF

(Continued)

(&)
(b) Capital commitments (b) BEZARAEIE
The Group had the following capital commitments as at RZZE—WE+_A=+—08"
31 December 2014: REBBATERALE
2014 2013
—E-MmF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBT T
Contracted, but not provided for: ~ B.5147 » {BARE A :
Land and buildings — related T RAEF — BES
parties (note 19) (FF5E19) 1,760 1,760
Property, plant and equipment E N YN — 1,627
Capital injection for acquisition BB AREE
of a subsidiary 7,000 —
8,760 3,387
The Company did not have capital commitments as at 31 AKRARRZ_ZFTE—WFE+A
December 2014 (2013: Nil). —t+—BUYEEAERE(ZF
—=F: )
Other commitments (c) HthAEiE

(c)

On 7 May 2013, the Group entered into the conditional
agreement with the construction contractor of Aurora
Liaohai, an independent third party, pursuant to which
the Group has agreed to sell Units A, B, C and D on 5th
Floor of Aurora Liaohai at an aggregate consideration
of RMB12,075,360, to partially offset butstanding
construction payment due to the construction contractor.
As the construction work has not been completed and
ownership has not yet been passed to the contractor,
these properties are recorded as CIP under property, plant
and equipment as at 31 December 2014.
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31. COMMITMENT — GROUP AND COMPANY 31./&iE — ANEERAAQ T

(Continued) (#%&)

(c) Other commitments (Continued) (c) HAbEE =
On 20 December 2013, the Group entered into another RZE—=F+ZHA=+H 'K
conditional agreement with an independent third party EEEBYE=HF TFHF] 7T
(“Party A”), pursuant to which the Group has conditionally VE—HEBEGHE B A
agreed to sell Units A, B and C of each of 6th, 7th and 8th SEBBRHEREREIIEMKE D
floors of Aurora Liaohai at an aggregate consideration of EBAEEES  LRNEEE
RMB40,158,040, upon completion of the construction. ZAB-CEIT'  BREAAR

As the construction work has not been completed and
ownership has not yet been passed to Party A, these
properties are also recorded as CIP under property,
plant and equipment while the corresponding deposit
of RMB20,079,020 received is recorded as receipt in
advance as at 31 December 2014.

On 17 January 2014, the Group entered into another
conditional agreement with another independent third party
(“Party B”), pursuant to which the Group has conditionally
agreed to sell the whole 9th and 10th floors of Aurora
Liaohai at an aggregate consideration of RMB20,489,560
upon completion of the construction. As the construction
work has not been complete and ownership has not yet
been passed to Party B, these properties are recorded
as CIP under property, plant and equipment while the
corresponding deposit of RMB13,244,780 received is
recorded as receipt in advance as at 31 December 2014.

On 3 April 2014, the Group entered into another
conditional agreement with the another independent
third party (“Party C”), pursuant to which the Group has
conditionally agreed to sell 3rd floors of Aurora Liaohai
at an aggregate consideration of RMB15,077,700, upon
completion of the construction. As the construction
work has not been complete and ownership has not yet
been passed to Party C, these properties are recorded
as CIP under property, plant and equipment while the
corresponding deposit of RMB7,538,850 received is
recorded as receipt in advance as at 31 December 2014.
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RZZE—NF—A++tH &%
BES—EBYE=F ([2H]) ]
VE—HEEGEHE Bk K
SEEBKRHEREREIEKE N
EBRESENALRTE  BRE
A AR 20,489,560 7T © R E
HLTREARBT - FIERETRAE
RYLH BAMER_T—N
F+ZA=1+—RIAEYE K
EREET 2EREIR K
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31. COMMITMENT — GROUP AND COMPANY

(Continued)

(c) Other commitments (continueq)

In December 2014, the Group entered into agreements
with certain independent third parties, pursuant to which
the Group has conditionally agreed to sell certain car park
spaces of Aurora Liaohai at an aggregate consideration of
RMB4,330,000, upon completion of construction. As the
construction work has not been complete and ownership
has not yet been passed to these parties, these car parks
are recorded as CIP under property, plant and equipment
while the corresponding deposit of RMB4,330,000
received is recorded as receipt in advance as at 31
December 2014.

32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) Balances and transactions

Other than the related party balances and transactions
disclosed elsewhere to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

3. &g — ARERALQTF

(%)

(c)

HAE 2

RZE—HFE+=f - ANEBHEH
BETBILFE=ZFIMNBE " &
bt AEEBERGRERERIE
REEEBRBESE TEEAN -
R ER AR 43300007 °
HREETENARERT - A%
MAREZXTZEALT  BEWE
RZZE—NFE+=_A=+—H%|
RBYME BERZREBETNZEET
BB zEEREARE
4,330,000 JT A ATEUGRIE AR ©

32. EBERHIRE

(@)

BRI S

BRIVERE B RS 3k H Ath 30 5 P4
BeBERERRRHIN K
SERFREATERBETR
5

2014 2013
—E-mF —EB—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Rental expenses paid to EfEERESMAS
related parties 100 97

The Group entered into one to two years lease in respect
of certain leasehold properties from related parties. With
reference to the terms negotiated between the related
parties, the Group paid rental expenses for office premises
to Ms. Ma Lee Kwan, mother of Mr. Chang, and certain
related companies, of which the Company’s shareholders
are also the major shareholders of these related
companies.
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32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continueq) 32 BEAEFIEE =
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b)) BEFFTEEEAS
The emoluments of directors who are also identified as EE(GALAEEXTEEEASR
members of key management of the Group during the ZHKE) REBE-_FT—NF+=
year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in note 11(a). A=+—BIFEZEHAR

FEE11(a) °

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 33. ®E T A (&E5)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RZZE—WF+-A=+—H ' &5
instruments as at 31 December 2014 are as follows: SWMTEZERMAENT :
Group Company
b | VN
2014 2013 2014 2013

“g-mF  -T-=F  ZB2-mE %=
RMB'000 RMB'O00  RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFR  ARBTT AR®TR ARETR

Financial assets — SREE —
Loans and receivables BRI W IR K
Account receivables G 24,456 17,084 - =
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEULH B A RIFRE - = 169,574 133,438
Other receivables and deposits paid Hiv AR E NiRE 40,004 26,400 5,275 12,146
Entrusted loan receivables EWZTER 18,000 = - =
Pledged bank deposits EERRITER 44,749 54,609 - =
Restricted bank deposits RIBHISR TR 18,701 16,191 - -
Cash and cash equivalents BehReSHERE 42,885 9,332 641 350
188,795 123,616 175,490 145,934
Financial liabilities — tHaE—
At amortised costs BB A
Accruals and other payables [ERTE A R AR R 39,238 40,751 1,809 433
Other borrowings HitfeE 45,893 23,639 22,155 -
Finance lease liabilities BHEHEARE 2,205 = - =
87,336 64,390 23,964 433
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise account
and other receivables, entrusted loan receivables, pledged bank
deposits, restricted bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
accruals and other payables, other borrowings and finance
lease liabilities. These financial instruments mainly arise from its
operations.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
approximated to their fair values as at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in
time and are based on relevant market information about the
financial instruments.

These estimates are subjective in nature and involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgement, and therefore
cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions
could significantly affect the estimates.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. As the Group’s exposure to these risks is kept
to a minimum level, the Group has not used any derivatives
and other instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does
not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes. The board of the directors of the Company reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and these
are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk means the risk on the fluctuation of fair value
or future cash flows of financial instruments which arise from
changes in interest rates. Floating interest rate instruments will
result in the Group facing the risk of changes in market interest
rate.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continueq)

The Group’s interest rate risk primarily relates to the interest
bearing bank balances and other borrowings with fixed interest
rates which are all short-term in nature. The Group currently
has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to
interest rate but may enter into interest rate hedging instruments
in the future to hedge any significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

Foreign currency risk

As the Group’s revenue and expenses are mainly in RMB and
most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB, which is the functional currency of the Group’s major
operating entities, the currency risk resulting from the Group’s
daily operations is considered not significant. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 34. B iR EB EERBE

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to obtain
financial guarantee from the Group are subject to management
review. The Group entered into financial guarantee contracts
in which it has guaranteed the bank the repayment of the loan
by customers of the Group. The Group has the obligation to
compensate the bank for the loss it would suffer in the event
of default by the customers. The Group’s maximum exposure
under the financial guarantee contracts is disclosed in “liquidity
risk” below. To mitigate such risk, the Group requests its
customers to provide collaterals as appropriate. In the event of
default or failure to repay any outstanding guarantee amounts
by the customers, the Group will proceed with the sale of
collaterals. In order to maintain the credit risk at desirable level,
the Group’s average loan-to-value ratio was kept below 50% to
ensure the recoverability of the outstanding guarantee amount.
As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s exposures under
unexpired financial guarantee contracts were secured by the
pledged assets of the customers as follows:

(%)
FEEE

AEEZBRRERERALAEEES
MERRCBEFPHSHEEBERESR - N
SEEIERMERREL  BAEE
RERFRRITEERE 2 ZOEEHER -
AEEBAEFEREPARBEZREER
TEZZEBXR  AEEREEREL
BT Z&ARBREENRTX [REES
R BREZER  AEBERE
FPR#EEG 2HEFR - IEFELON
REEEBEMRENERSE  ASEE
HERITFR - AERFEEEERRK
¥ AEB 2 FHERGGEEL RS
FR50% AT « ARER KRB EREZ
aEE e RZE—WOF+—_A=+—
B AEERIBREREREVBARR
T2 ERREEERER

2014 2013

—F-mF ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETTT
Property, plant and equipment E Y e 2,001,042 862,108
Inventories e~y 1,407,726 739,002
Account receivables RIS BR X 221,626 56,801
Bank deposits (note 23) RITER (F15E23) 18,701 16,191
3,649,095 1,674,102
China Assurance Finance Group Limited FERREHEEERAT
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. The Group
holds collaterals to cover its risks associated with account
receivables. Account receivables arising from the financial
guarantee contracts were secured by certain assets of the
customers. The fair value of the pledged assets, which are
also pledged to secure the Group’s exposure under unexpired
financial guarantee contracts as mentioned above, as at 31
December 2014 and 2013 is as follows:
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()
EERkE =)

EUREREHIREER  MASEZ
ERRARITTEK - AEEFEIEFR
AR B ARIERF 2 AR - BEER
AHNEARKETUNEPZETEEE
R - RZTB—NFR=ZF—=F+=
A=+—8 BEEREE (ARRASE
BRI HRE ERE N2 BB EER
(FA ExCFril)) 2 AFERT

2014 2013

—E-MmEF ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R&E 1,107,685 366,362
Inventories ey 629,336 163,962
Account receivables JEUBR IR 162,341 25,000
Bank deposits (note 23) RITFHR (FisE23) 1,250 1,500
1,900,612 556,824

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
mainly comprise of pledged bank deposits, restricted bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents, arises from potential
default of the counter-party, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these instruments. Credit risk in
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents is
mitigated as cash is deposited in the banks of high credit rating.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

Management of the Group monitors current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that the Group maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in

the short and long term.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities, based on
the contractual undiscounted payments is as follows:

4. BRREAREEERERBER
(%)
REE T E R

AEEEEEERBARERRSES
2X - BRASEHEFTRRSHE
NENEHERARSDESEK -

TRBAREERIZES OARBERKIAZ
TRBEIIHER

Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Within One year Repayable
amount  cash flows 1 year orabove  ondemand
BHRE
BRETE
REE ok R-Er  -FIUE  REREE
\ RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Group A5E ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
2014 —E-mE
Accruals and other payables JESH B PR R EL A TR 39,238 39,238 39,238 - -
Other borrowings (note) Ao s () 45,803 45,803 - - 45,803
Finance lease liabilities BERERE 2,205 2,453 739 1,714 -
87,336 87,584 39,977 1,714 45,893
Financial guarantees issued ERTRERR
Maximum amount guaranteed BERSATE 592,300 592,300 - - 592,300
2013 “E-=f
Accruals and other payables JEH B R R EL A FE TR 40,751 40,751 40,751 — —
Other borrowing g 23,639 23,639 - — 23,639
64,390 64,390 40,751 - 23,639
Financial guarantees issued ERTREER
Maximum amount guaranteed BERGATE 426,100 426,100 — - 426,100
Company KAF
2014 “E-ME
Accruals and other payables JEH B R R L A TR 1,809 1,809 1,809 - 1,809
Other borrowing EthiEE 22,155 22,155 22,155 - -
23,964 23,964 23,964 - 1,809
2013 -z
Accruals and other payables et ER Rt 08 433 433 433 = =
China Assurance Finance Group Limited TERASHEBERAR
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk Continued)
Note:

Other borrowings are repayable in 2015, it contains clauses which give the
lender the right at its sole discretion to demand immediate payment.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as going concern
and to maintain reasonable capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the year.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total
debts divided by total equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s strategy was
to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy capital level in order
to support its businesses. The principal strategies adopted by
the Group include, without limitation, reviewing future cash flow
requirements and the ability to meet debt repayment schedules
when they fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available
banking facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing
plans, if necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable
level of capital to support its business.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 34. B iR EB EERBE

35.

POLICIES (continueq) ()
Capital management (continued) BEXREE #)
The gearing ratios are as follows: BELEMAT -
2014 2013
—2-mEF —F—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETF T
Other borrowings and total debt HinfgERABERTE 48,098 23,639
Equity attributable to the owner RATHEA AEGERE
of the Company 201,152 202,623
Gearing ratio BERaELE 0.24 0.12

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

The Group issues performance guarantee contracts for which
the Group agreed to provide guarantees to its customers who
enter into contracts with third parties for services to be rendered
or goods to be supplied within an agreed time period. The
Group has the obligation to compensate the third parties for
their losses arising from the defaults in contracts by the Group’s
customers. As at 31 December 2014, there were no unexpired
performance guarantee contracts as these contracts were all
completed (2013: Nil).

The account receivables under these contracts amounted to
approximately RMB9,760,000 as at 31 December 2014. The
Group’s exposure of these outstanding account receivables was
secured by the inventories of the customers. The fair value of
these inventories as at reporting date is RMB27,795,000 (2013:
RMB24,140,000).

There is no significant concentration of risk under performance
guarantee contracts as at 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

China Assurance Finance Group Limited
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